Notice of Meeting

Environment & Transport Select
Committee
Date & time
Thursday, 22
January 2015
at 10.30 am

Place
Committee Room 1
&2, Elmbridge
Borough Council, Civic
Centre, High Street,
Esher, Surrey KT10
9SD

Contact
Huma Younis
Room 122, County Hall
Tel 020 8213 2725

Chief Executive
David McNulty

huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk

If you would like a copy of this agenda or the attached papers in
another format, eg large print or braille, or another language please
either call 020 8541 9122, write to Democratic Services, Room 122,
County Hall, Penrhyn Road, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1
2DN, Minicom 020 8541 8914, fax 020 8541 9009, or email
huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk.
This meeting will be held in public. If you would like to attend and you
have any special requirements, please contact Huma Younis on 020
8213 2725.
Members
Mr David Harmer (Chairman), Mr Mike Bennison (Vice-Chairman), Mrs Nikki Barton, Mrs Natalie
Bramhall, Mr Mark Brett-Warburton, Mr Stephen Cooksey, Mrs Pat Frost, Mr David Goodwin, Mr
Ken Gulati, Mr Peter Hickman, Mr George Johnson, Mr Adrian Page, Mr Michael Sydney, Mr
Richard Wilson and Mrs Victoria Young
Ex Officio Members:
Mr David Munro (Chairman of the County Council) and Mrs Sally Ann B Marks (Vice Chairman
of the County Council)

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Select Committee is responsible for the following areas:
Environment
 Strategic Planning
 Countryside
 Waste
 Economic Development & the Rural Economy
 Housing
 Minerals
 Flood Prevention

Transport
 Transport Service Infrastructure
 Aviation
 Highway Maintenance
 Community Transport
 Local Transport Plan
 Road Safety
 Concessionary Travel

Page 1 of 4

PART 1
IN PUBLIC
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

2

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 15 DECEMBER 2014

(Pages 1
- 10)

To agree the minutes as a true record of the meeting.
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests from
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.
Notes:
• In line with the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012, declarations may relate to the interest of the
member, or the member’s spouse or civil partner, or a person with
whom the member is living as husband or wife, or a person with whom
the member is living as if they were civil partners and the member is
aware they have the interest.
• Members need only disclose interests not currently listed on the
Register of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests.
• Members must notify the Monitoring Officer of any interests disclosed at
the meeting so they may be added to the Register.
• Members are reminded that they must not participate in any item where
they have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

4

QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS
To receive any questions or petitions.
Notes:
1. The deadline for Member’s questions is 12.00pm four working days
before the meeting (16 January 2015).
2. The deadline for public questions is seven days before the meeting (15
January 2015).
3. The deadline for petitions was 14 days before the meeting, and no
petitions have been received.

5

RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE
SELECT COMMITTEE
There are no responses to report.

6

RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK
PROGRAMME
The Committee is asked to monitor progress on the implementation of
recommendations from previous meetings, and to review its Forward Work
Programme.

Page 2 of 4

(Pages
11 - 20)

7

LOCAL GROWTH DEAL - INVESTMENT IN TRANSPORT
INFRASTRUCTURE DURING 2015/ 16 TO 2017/18

(Pages
21 - 34)

Purpose of the report: Policy Development and Review
The Committee has requested a report on the recent Local Growth Deals
and how this opportunity is being used to fund the transport infrastructure
in Surrey. The scope of the report is limited to the schemes being
proposed in the current funding round, focused on the 2015/16
programme.
8

JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY REVISION 2
(2015)

(Pages
35 - 64)

Purpose of the report: Policy development and review
This report introduces the revised joint waste management strategy
(Annexe 1), which is recommended for adoption by the Cabinet subject to
approval by the Committee.

9

UTILITIES TASK GROUP RECOMMENDATIONS AND SOUTH EAST
PERMIT SCHEME (SEPS): UPDATE REPORT

(Pages
65 - 142)

Purpose of the report: Policy Development and Review
The Select Committee is asked to review the further progress made on the
recommendations of the Task Group, and to also review the performance
of the South East Permit Scheme, to improve the co-ordination and quality
of work of utilities companies in Surrey.
10

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the Committee will be held at 10.30am on 12 March
2015 at the Basingstoke Canal Centre, Mytchett Place Road, Mytchett,
Camberley GU16 6DD.

David McNulty
Chief Executive
Published: Tuesday 13 January, 2015

Page 3 of 4

MOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND FILMING – ACCEPTABLE USE
Those attending for the purpose of reporting on the meeting may use social media or mobile
devices in silent mode to send electronic messages about the progress of the public parts of
the meeting. To support this, County Hall has wifi available for visitors – please ask at reception
for details.
Anyone is permitted to film, record or take photographs at council meetings. Please liaise with
the council officer listed in the agenda prior to the start of the meeting so that those attending
the meeting can be made aware of any filming taking place.
Use of mobile devices, including for the purpose of recording or filming a meeting, is subject to
no interruptions, distractions or interference being caused to the PA or Induction Loop systems,
or any general disturbance to proceedings. The Chairman may ask for mobile devices to be
switched off in these circumstances.
It is requested that if you are not using your mobile device for any of the activities outlined
above, it be switched off or placed in silent mode during the meeting to prevent interruptions
and interference with PA and Induction Loop systems.
Thank you for your co-operation

Page 4 of 4

Item 2
MINUTES of the meeting of the ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT SELECT
COMMITTEE held at 10.30 am on 15 December 2014 at Ashcombe Suite,
County Hall, Kingston upon Thames, Surrey KT1 2DN.
These minutes are subject to confirmation by the Committee at it’s meeting on
the 22 January 2015.
Elected Members:
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

Mr David Harmer (Chairman)
Mr Mike Bennison (Vice-Chairman)
Mrs Nikki Barton
Mrs Natalie Bramhall
Mr Mark Brett-Warburton
Mr Stephen Cooksey
Mrs Pat Frost
Mr David Goodwin
Mr Ken Gulati
Mr Peter Hickman
Mr George Johnson
Mr Adrian Page
Mr Michael Sydney
Mr Richard Wilson
Mrs Victoria Young

In attendance
Mike Goodman, Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning
John Furey, Cabinet Member For Highways, Transport and Flooding

78/14 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS [Item 1]
Apologies were received from Mike Bennison and Stephen Cooksey.
Will Forester substituted for Stephen Cooksey.
79/14 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING: 27 OCTOBER 2014 [Item 2]
These were agreed as a true record of the previous meeting.
80/14 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST [Item 3]
There were none.
81/14 QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS [Item 4]
A member question was received from Cllr Jonathan Essex. The question and
response are attached as annex 1 to the minutes.
Declarations of Interest:
None
Witnesses:
None

Page 1

2

2
Key Points Raised During the Discussion:
1. The Member began by asking if the current Preventative Maintenance
Strategy was verbally agreed or available in a written format. Officers
explained that all current strategies and policies are published online
via the SCC website and that a link to these strategies would be sent
to the Member in due course.
2. Officers were asked if they could demonstrate assertions made within
the response regarding the level of preventative maintenance currently
being carried out. It was explained that current Department of
Transport rankings place SCC above some neighbouring counties and
in a good position overall nationally on this issue.
Actions/Further Information to be Provided:
None
82/14 RESPONSES FROM THE CABINET TO ISSUES REFERRED BY THE
SELECT COMMITTEE [Item 5]
Key Points Raised During the Discussion:
1. It was re-iterated by the Committee that one of the chief concerns
among Surrey residents was the quality of communication with groups
involved during the flood recovery process and that this should
continue to be addressed going forward.
2. The Committee welcomed efforts made by Cabinet Members to
secure recovery funding for residents. It was established that the
Cabinet Member is pursuing an extension of the current date of
limitation on flood recovery funding (from central government) to allow
residents having difficulty claiming financial support more time to do
so. The Cabinet Member explained that both DEFRA and the
Secretary of State had yet to offer a response to requests for an
extension of this kind.
83/14 RECOMMENDATION TRACKER AND FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
[Item 6]
Witnesses:
None
Key Points Raised During the Discussion:
1. Members discussed the need for more specific information regarding
the breakdown of injury and non-injury accidents involving cyclists in
Surrey for the period of 2013/14.
2. Members asked why they had not been shown the most recent report
regarding the Canal Centre Redevelopment Proposals which was
discussed at the previous Basingstoke Canal Joint Management
Committee. It was made clear to the Committee by the Cabinet

Page 2

Member, and Officers, that the report had been commissioned as a
means of establishing the implications of compiling a business case
for the redevelopment of the Canal Centre Site rather then a business
case in full.
Recommendations:
None
Actions/Further Information to be Provided:
•

Members requested further data be provided delineating between
injury and non-injury accidents involving cyclists for 2013/14.

Committee Next Steps:
None
84/14 HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT MEMBER REFERENCE GROUP REPORT ON
THE KIER CONTRACT [Item 7]
Witnesses:
Jason Russell, Assistant Director for Highways and Transport
Mark Borland, Works Delivery Group Manager
Key Points Raised During the Discussion:
1. The report was introduced by the Assistant Director for Highways and
Transport (ADHT) who provided a brief overview of the report,
highlighting the good level of contact between Surrey, Kier Officers
and the Member Reference Group (MRG) both before and during the
formation of the report.
2. The ADHT advised that, in line with the MRG’s assessment, Kier be
allowed to develop a 5 year business plan - in conjunction with Surrey
Officers - covering the 2016/21 period to be delivered to Cabinet by
the end of next year. As part of this process it was recommended by
the ADHT that a one-year extension be granted to the existing contract
to allow a business plan to be drawn up. It was also established that
the existing MRG should be closely involved in this process.
3. Members were informed that the MRG had also been instrumental in
identifying areas requiring improvement such as the current IT
infrastructure employed by Highways teams. It was stressed by the
Committee that the management of IT infrastructure of this kind would
be essential to the success of normal operations going forward and
that it was important for Officers to continue to identify areas where
SCC and Kier systems can align and to ensure software compatibility
where possible. This was noted as being critical to the long term
success of the contract; particularly in light of recent IT upgrades being
carried out by Kier internally.
4. Members expressed concern over the issues raised in Paragraph 26
regarding the level of communication SCC and Kier are reported to
have had with residents up to this point. The Committee stressed the

Page 3

2

2

importance of SCC and Kier representatives having regular contact
with Local Committees and endorsed that officers find means of
achieving this in the long term.
5. The Committee expressed the view that communication problems
impacted local businesses during periods where road maintenance
was carried out. Members cited issues with the quality of road signage
and the inadequate level of consultation prior to road closures as
having adversely affected businesses as a result. The Committee
expressed a desire to see the development of a clearer
communication strategy in order to tackle this more appropriately in
future.
6. Members noted issues concerning the efficiency of current gulley
cleaning efforts being administered by Conway and expressed a
desire to see this addressed more acutely in future.
7. The Committee raised concerns with the points raised in Paragraph 30
regarding the existing organisational structure of Surrey Highways.
Members maintained that further restructuring was unnecessary and
stressed that previous efforts had resulted in a worsening of
communications between stakeholders rather than an improvement.
8. The ADHT advised the Committee that both Kier and SCC are
continuously making improvements to the service to make it as robust
as possible. It was also acknowledged that improving the quality of
communication with residents was key to this and would continue to
be at the forefront of this approach going forward.
9. The Committee was informed that one means being considered to
address this was the creation of a dedicated public liaison officer
within the terms of the contract. Members were concerned whether
this was feasible with the funding constraints of the current contract. It
was explained that such a position would funded through further
efficiencies in the current contract.
10. Officers explained to the Committee that sub-contractors have been
used in the existing framework. It was noted that the service was
looking to more localized supply chains for sub-contractual work where
appropriate (in line with Kier and SCC standards).
11. Members were made aware that SCC was in a good position in
comparison to other authorities on this item. The ADHT explained that
the proposed 5 year extension consideration allowed for SCC’s
proposals to be both more comprehensive in a national context and
was unique in this respect.
12. Members of the MRG explained to the Committee that they plan to
continue holding each body to account through site visits and
conversations directly with Kier and SCC representatives. It was also
established that the MRG will meet with Members from
Northamptonshire in the New Year to evaluate their experiences with
Kier and identify areas where this can improve SCC’s existing
arrangement.

Page 4

2

Recommendations:
The Environment and Transport Select Committee agreed the following
recommendations;
a) That the Select Committee endorse the proposal that Cabinet approve
an initial extension to the Kier contract of at least one year; during
which time Kier will be given the opportunity to work with Surrey to
develop a 5 year business plan covering the period 2016-2021.
b) That the Highways and Transport MRG provide ongoing member
insight and scrutiny and report back to Select Committee before
October 2015.
Actions/Further Information to be Provided:
•

Officers to provide the Committee with the finalised Kier contract
before it goes to Cabinet in October 2015.

•

Member Reference Group to provide the Select Committee with a
progress update in due course.

Committee Next Steps:
None.
85/14 COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY OVERVIEW/ THE HORLEY
MASTER PLAN [Item 8]
Witnesses:
Paul Druce, Infrastructure Agreements Manager
Peter Boarder, Horley Regeneration Project Manager, SCC / Reigate and
Banstead BC
i) CIL Overview Report
Key Points Raised During the Discussion:
1. The Chairman began by inquiring with officers as to the potential for a
regular update with Members on the status of Surrey district and
boroughs readiness for CIL in line with the issues raised in Paragraph
24 of the report. The Infrastructure Agreements Manager (IAM) raised
the potential for the distribution of a quarterly one page bulletin by
Boroughs on this going forward to members of the select committee
and local committee chairman.
2. Members raised concerns regarding authorities yet to fully implement
CIL and how this may impact existing development. The IAM informed
the Committee that the failure to adopt CIL could allow certain
development to avoid paying developer contributions but the
government's chief planner has said, where the issue has been
raised, that LPA's have had 5 years to adopt CIL and any shortfall in
contributions is therefore a matter for them.

Page 5

2

3. Members noted that local committees should be scrutinising in detail
how CIL funds are distributed and spent as CIL is adopted across
Surrey.
i) Recommendations:
The Select Committee endorsed the following recommendations:
a) That there be continued collaboration with Borough and District
colleagues in their preparation of Local Plans, Infrastructure Delivery
Plans, CIL Charging Schedules and Regulation 123 Lists.
b) Officers continued collaboration with Borough and District colleagues
on draft CIL documentation to ensure the County Council is able to
support development in each of the areas by securing and providing
infrastructure at the required time.
c) Officers continuing to seek agreement as to how the governance
regime for CIL will operate in each of the areas by way of a
memorandum of understanding or other suitable agreement, and
d) The further work required to secure a suitable governance regime in
each of the areas, in the light of the possible different models for
governance, given that the Woking model is one that appears to offer
the most open and transparent collaborative process for deciding
which schemes CIL monies should support.
ii) CIL/Horley Master Plan Report
1. The Committee inquired as to the impact of SANGS on CIL payments
for Surrey Heath. It was clarified to Members that up to 80% of CIL
contributions are diverted to SANGS currently. The Committee asked
Officers if this was something that could be determined by Surrey’s
Districts and Boroughs in future (due to SANGS impact on West
Surrey authorities) however it was explained that control of SANGS
framework is determined by the E.U. and as such can’t be avoided in
this instance.
2. The Horley Regeneration Project Manager (HRPM) informed the
Committee that authorities can set different CIL rates for different
areas of any one borough, in line with a geographical and viability
assessment.
3. It was recognised by Members that SCC and its District and Boroughs
have a long relationship of working together on these types of items
and despite the Committee’s recommendations not being fully
enforceable it was agreed that this issue would remain a matter of
trust between Surrey and it’s local authorities.
ii) Recommendations:
The Select Committee endorsed the following recommendations:

Page 6

a) The principle of the Borough Council’s proposal to charge a higher
levy for residential development in the North West Sector
b) Officers making formal representations on the Borough Councils
Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule including its Regulation 123 list,
as necessary
c) The two authorities work together to reach agreement by way of a
memorandum of understanding to ring fence monies to ensure that
there is sufficient funding to deliver the identified infrastructure in and
service improvements in the HMP
Actions/Further Information to be Provided:
None
Committee Next Steps:
None.
86/14 SURREY HIGHWAYS- SAFETY DEFECT YEAR 1 REVIEW [Item 9]
Witnesses:
Mark Borland, Works Delivery Group Manager
Paul Wheadon, Commercial and Performance Team Manager
Key Points Raised During the Discussion:
1. The Works Delivery Group Manager (WDGM) introduced the report by
explaining that eighty five thousand potholes were fixed in Surrey
annually. The Committee was also informed that a six step action plan
was developed to provide a framework for the project. Fundamental to
this plan was the introduction of a new IT system which went live in
August 2014 to replace the previous May Gurney system.
2. The WDGM clarified to the Committee that the flooding event in the
beginning of 2014 resulted in an impact on the final Safety Defects
Performance figures; causing the performances in these periods to
notably miss the current 98% target.
3. Members queried the length of guarantee for each maintained pothole.
The WDGM clarified that the time period guaranteed for each repaired
pothole by Kier is currently two years.
4. Officers informed Members that the product Viafix was being
considered as a replacement for the current material used to repair
potholes. It was explained that Viafix offers the same permanent repair
option as current methods but offers a guarantee of two years under
both dry and wet conditions and minimizes the need for follow up
visits.
5. The WDGM explained that the managerial hierarchy had been
addressed to enable Surrey and Kier managers to report to one
another directly and fully integrate as a result.

Page 7

2

2

6. It was make clear that the quality assurance team focussed on road
defects throughout the project.
7. Members inquired as to the current technology used to track potholes
within the Surrey area. Officers explained that a new GPS device was
being rolled out to enable greater levels of mobile working and
identification however it was noted there was still a focus on public
reporting. The Chairman noted that Surrey Police had also recently
adopted the same hardware for in-the-field application and could be
consulted on the implications of such a rollout for Surrey.
8. The Committee agreed that pothole targets should remain high, rather
then be lowered, in order to maintain and improve current practice and
standards.
Recommendations:
The Select Committee noted and commented on outcomes of the Surrey
Defect project’s first year.
Actions/Further Information to be Provided:
•

Scrutiny Officer to arrange site visit for approximately 6-7 members of
the Select Committee to the Incident Response Centre at Merrow.

Committee Next Steps: None.
87/14 AGREEMENT WITH SURREY WILDLIFE TRUST FOR THE MANAGEMENT
OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL'S COUNTRYSIDE ESTATE [Item 10]
Witnesses:
Lisa Creaye-Griffin, Countryside Group Manager
Key Points Raised During the Discussion:
1. The Countryside Group Manager introduced the report by stressing
the services commitment to reducing Surrey’s total contribution to the
Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT) to 0% by 2021. It was emphasised that
this would be achieved through supporting the re-organisation of the
trust and the increased commercialization of its assets in the following
18 months.
2. Members congratulated the Countryside Group Manager on the
current turnaround of SWT as it stands in the report. The Committee
was encouraged by SWT’s move towards greater commercialisation
and the efforts to find partners in this regard. It was noted that
Property will be looking at how SWT deal with the County’s property
and smallholdings. SWT’s performance in dealing with the built
property on the Countryside Estate will be covered in the report that
will come to Committee in March 2015.
3. The Committee stressed that it was important to encourage the
development of a strong management and oversight structure in the

Page 8

coming months. It was recognised that this should be as robust as
possible and was as crucial to the long term success of SWT as any
other future agreements.
4. It was acknowledged by Members that in light of the financial savings
being sought across SCC, it would prove difficult to find all the
resources necessary to oversee the restructuring of the SWT and SCC
agreement.
5. The Committee inquired as to the potential sanctions at SCC’s
disposal should SWT not achieve its KPIs. Officers explained that
should SWT breach an agreement the County were in their rights to
break the contract however it might be in the county’s interest to avoid
this. It was noted that there will be an annual review of the SWT
agreement which would go to both the Select Committee and Cabinet
for comment. A review would be undertaken every five years to
understand whether KPIs were being met.
Recommendations:
The Select Committee agreed the principles of the revised Agreement with
Surrey Wildlife Trust before the report goes to Cabinet.
Actions/Further Information to be Provided:
None.
Committee Next Steps:
None.
88/14 DATE OF NEXT MEETING [Item 11]
The next meeting of the Select Committee will be on 22 January 2015.
______________________________________________________________
Chairman

Page 9

2

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

ENVIRONMENT & TRANSPORT SELECT COMMITTEE
ACTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER
The recommendations tracker allows Committee Members to monitor responses, actions and outcomes against their
recommendations or requests for further actions. The tracker is updated following each Committee. Once an action has been
completed and reported to the Committee, it will be removed from the tracker.
Date of
meeting
23 January
2014

Item
CIL Update Report
[Item 11]

Page 11
23 January
2014

Utilities Task Group:
Update Report [item
12]

Recommendations/
Actions
The Transport Policy Team
Manager to report back to
the Committee on updated
timescales for the 4 year
transport strategies
adoption programme, as
shown on page 81 of the
report.
Officers to provide a
briefing note for Local
Committees detailing the
positive work taking place
following implementation of
the Task Group’s
recommendations and the
permit scheme.

Achieved or still outstanding?
Achieved
Updated timescales to be included
as part of the Local Growth Deal
report coming to Select Committee
in January 2015.

Achieved

Responsible
Officer:
Lyndon
Mendes/Paul
Sanderson

Matt Jezzard

Item 6

The Streetworks Team Manager
has contacted all Local Committees
offering to present an update on the
positive works taking place post
Task Group and the progress of the
Permit Scheme so far. Thus far
presentations have been given to
Waverley and a presentation is
scheduled for Spelthorne on 2 Feb
2015.

6

6

27 Oct
2014

27 Oct
2014

Page 12

27 Oct
2014

Surrey Cycling
Strategy Update
[Item 7]

Report of the
Flooding Task Group
[Item 8]

Report of the
Flooding Task Group
[Item 8]

For the Place and
Sustainability Group
Manager
to look at data for the
number of accidents
involving cyclists on Surrey
roads in 2013/14 and
forward this to the
Committee
For the Programme
Manager and Flood Water
Strategy Manager to
investigate how flooding
schemes are prioritised by
DEFRA.
For the Programme
Manager to investigate
further how the ‘index of
multiple deprivation’
funding formula operates
and report back findings to
the Committee.

Achieved

Lesley Harding/
Duncan Knox

The Road Safety Team Manager
sent through the committee a road
casualty report listing data on the
number of accidents involving
cyclists on 22 December 2014.

Outstanding

Ben Skipp/ Mark
Howarth

Awaiting a response from the
Environment Agency.

Outstanding
Awaiting a response from the
Environment Agency.

Ben Skipp/ Mark
Howarth

Report of the
Flooding Task Group
[Item 8]

For the Programme
Outstanding
Manager to meet with the
SPOA (Surrey Planning
Officers Association) to
discuss flood schemes and
anticipated timescales for
implementation along with
the associated planning
approval required and to
report back to the
committee with findings.

Ben Skipp/ Mark
Howarth

15 Dec
2014

Recommendations
Tracker and Forward
Work Programme
[Item 6]

Members requested further
data be provided
delineating between injury
and non-injury accidents
involving cyclists for
2013/14.

Achieved

Huma Younis/
Duncan Knox

Highways and
Transport Member
Reference Group
Report on the Kier
Contract [Item 7]

Officers to provide the
Committee with the
finalised Kier contract
before it goes to Cabinet in
October 2015.

Achieved

Surrey Highways –
Safety Defect Year 1
Review [Item 9]

Scrutiny Officer to arrange
site visit for approximately
6-7 members of the Select
Committee to the Incident
Response Centre at
Merrow.

Achieved

Page 13

27 Oct
2014

15 Dec
2014

15 Dec
2014

A response from the Road Safety
Team Manager was emailed to
members on 22 December 2014.

Huma Younis

This has been included on the
forward work programme for 2015.

Huma Younis

A site visit to the Merrow Complex
has been organised for 23 March.

6

6

Page 14

Environment and Transport Select Committee Work Programme

Item
Local Growth Deal
Revised Joint Waste Strategy
Utilities Task Group: officer
update

Item
Basingstoke Canal

Page 15

Item
Local Transport Review
Surrey Wildlife Trust
Agreement
Rail Strategy update

22 January 2015
Purpose
To consider funding from Local Growth deals, and the projects on which
this will be spent.
To scrutinise the final version of the joint waste strategy for Surrey, prior
to approval by Cabinet
To review progress towards implementation of the Task Group’s
recommendations, and to consider the success to date of the SEPS
permit scheme.

Contact Officer
Jason Russell

Comments
Report

Matt Smyth

Report

Matthew Jezzard

Report

12 March 2015
Purpose
To inform the Committee of progress regarding the asset management
plan for the Basingstoke Canal.

Contact Officer
Lisa Creaye-Griffin

Comments
Report

Contact Officer
Paul Millin/ Nick
Meadows
Lisa Creaye-Griffin

Comments
Report

23 April 2015
Purpose
To review and scrutinise the Local Transport Review prior to approval at
Cabinet.
To review and comment on the final terms of the Surrey Wildlife Trust
Agreement before final approval at Cabinet.
To receive an update on the rail strategy.

Paul Millin/ Lee
McQuade

Report
Report

Items to be scheduled:
CIL Progress Report (Summer/Autumn 2015)
Electric Vehicle Strategy (Spring/Summer 2015)
Kier contract extension progress report (Spring/Summer
2015)
Kier Contract Agreement (Autumn 2015)
Cycling Strategy – annual report (Spring/Summer 2015 tbc)
Progress on Cabinet Member priorities - June 2015

1
6

6

Environment and Transport Select Committee Work Programme
Task and Member Reference Groups:
Countryside Management
Member Reference Group

Bill Barker
Mark Brett-Warburton
Stephen Cooksey
David Harmer
(Spokesperson)

To report to Environment & Transport Select Committee with
recommendations to advise the Cabinet Member on the
changes required to the Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT)/Surrey
County Council (SCC) Agreement and its governance, to
ensure that it is fit for purpose for the remainder of its term.
To include:

Page 16

• determining the terms of the Agreement between the
County Council and SWT
• determining the powers of SCC under the Agreement
• advising on how the agricultural portfolio should be
managed
• advising on how the forestry portfolio should be managed
• advising on how the rest of the property portfolio should
be managed
• advising on Governance to ensure that SCC fulfils its
stewardship duty (to include also the co-ordination of the
activities of Surrey representatives on Boards and
Management Groups related to the SWT Agreement, and
the establishment of an appropriate method of reporting
back to the Select Committee and its Task Group)
• advising on the SCC makeup of the Partnership
Committee and to ensure a clear remit for those
Members
• advising on the draft strategy and business plan for the
SCC Estate
• advising on the future of the Sawmill and Workshop.

Customer Service Excellence
Member Reference Group

John Beckett
Stephen Cooksey
George Johnson
Richard Wilson
(Spokesperson)
Victoria Young

To support the Highways Service’s journey to achieve the
Customer Service Excellence (CSE) Standard, by:
•
•
•

Sharing the perspective of users and the general public
on customer service within Highways
Challenging and validating the project’s objectives
Providing advice on how to approach wider engagement
with the public and stakeholders

The Group’s amended terms
of reference were agreed at
Select Committee on 23
October 2013.
The Group met on 3 February
2014, and will reconvene
once further work has been
completed on the SWT
Business Plan.
The MRG met on 21
November 2014 to discuss
and review the revised
agreement between SWT and
SCC.

The work of the Group is
currently underway and its
most recent meeting took
place on 29 September.
The next meeting of the
Group will take place on 21
November 2014.

2

Environment and Transport Select Committee Work Programme
•
•
•

•
Finance Sub-Group

Page 17

Mike Bennison
Stephen Cooksey
David Harmer
(Spokesperson)
George Johnson
Michael Sydney
Richard Wilson

To carry out robust scrutiny of major budgets, performance
and costs of the services within the remit of the Environment
& Transport Select Committee, and review existing and
potential options for budget savings and performance
improvement including testing of the evidence base for
these options. Specifically:
•

•

•

•

•

Flooding Task Group

Mark Brett-Warburton
Stephen Cooksey

Putting forward recommendations on the action plan
Acting as advocates for CSE with Member colleagues
and customers
Providing a Member perspective on future performance
criteria, the levels of service and priorities, which may
include the most effective use of IT supporting systems
for the benefit of both the public and the highways
department.
Helping maintain CSE as a priority once the award has
been achieved.
The Group have met on four
occasions between October
and November 2014.

To work with E&I Directorate management and Finance
officers to develop a good understanding of the budgets
within the committee’s remit and identify any further
information which might be required.
To carry out scrutiny of revenue spend of Environment &
Infrastructure for the Medium Term Financial Plan
(including fees and charges) period 2015/16 to 2018/19,
with a broad focus on highways and environment issues.
To test the evidence base for existing and potential
options for reducing costs of service delivery, generating
income and improving performance.
To suggest additional areas for achieving significant
savings based on views of individual members of the
finance sub group
To lead the discussion when the issues are discussed by
the full Committee at a workshop session, ensuring that
other Members have a good understanding and can
make informed decisions.

To review the recent flood events that took place in Surrey
and help the Council be as well prepared as possible for

The Group has concluded its
investigation and will be

3
6

6

Environment and Transport Select Committee Work Programme

Page 18

Highways for the Future
Member Reference Group

David Harmer
(Spokesperson)
Peter Hickman
Chris Norman
Denise Saliagopoulos
Nick Skellett

future instances of flooding, by addressing the following
questions:

Mike Bennison
(Spokesperson)
Stephen Cooksey
Peter Hickman
Richard Wilson

To allow Member input into the Highways Service’s plans
for the future long-term management of Surrey’s highways,
by:

• What are the key lessons to be learnt from the County
Council’s response to recent flood events?
• With the benefit of hindsight, what could the County
Council do better should future flood events take place?
• How were local communities affected by flooding and
what did they see as the key issues on the ground?
• What ‘business as usual’ activities can be carried out
more effectively to help prevent flooding?
• What schemes for Surrey are being included as part of
the River Thames Scheme, how are they being funded
and do they represent the best possible protection for the
County?
• To monitor findings of key Section 19 reports and
consider how the Council can best invest in infrastructure
to mitigate against future rain and storm events.

submitting its final report to
the Select Committee meeting
on 27 October.
The report from the Select
Committee was submitted to
Cabinet on 25 November.

The work of the Group is
currently underway and it is
meeting on a regular basis.

• Providing a member perspective on future performance
criteria, the levels of service and priorities.
• Providing a member perspective on the alignment
between maintenance and improvement of the highway.
I.e. bringing together activities currently separated into
'highways' and 'transport'.
• Providing insight and challenge to the reviews of the
current delivery strategies, including Horizon, safety
defects, asset management strategies etc. Also help
consideration of member roles in future delivery
strategies.
• Providing insight and challenge to current contract
performance, and to consideration of the extension of the
Kier contract.
• Providing insight and challenge to the development of
future procurement strategies.

4

Environment and Transport Select Committee Work Programme
• Providing a member perspective on capability issues for
the 'Client' organisation.
Local Transport Review
Member Reference Group

Pat Frost
(Spokesperson)
David Goodwin
Peter Hickman
Michael Sydney

To assist the E&I Directorate in its Local Transport Review
project, by:
•
•

•
•
•

Page 19
Winter Maintenance Task
Group

•
•

Stephen Cooksey
(Spokesperson)
David Goodwin
David Harmer

Giving officers the perspective of users and the general
public on the various transport services under review
Advising on proposed levels of savings and the balance
between savings and unavoidable impacts on users and
the public
Challenging and validating the project’s Equalities Impact
Assessments
Advising on the balance of savings between different
service types and areas
Advising on how to approach wider engagement with the
public and stakeholders and own the agreed plan
Acting as advocates for the agreed plan with Member
colleagues and community organisations
Following a briefing on consultation responses, advising
on the proposals to be taken before E&T Select
Committee and Cabinet.

To provide scrutiny and oversight of Surrey’s annual Winter
Maintenance policy.

The work of the Group is
currently underway and its
most recent meeting took
place on 17 October 2014.
The next meeting of the
Group will take place in
February 2015.

The Task Group met on 14
July 2014 to consider the
Winter Maintenance policy for
2013/14 following consultation
with Local Committees. This
was then approved by the
Select Committee on 17 July
2014.

5
6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20

[RESTRICTED]
Item
7

7

Environment & Transport Select Committee
Thursday 22 January 2015
Local Growth Deal – investment in transport infrastructure
during 2015/ 16 to 2017/18

Purpose of the report: Policy Development and Review
The Committee has requested a report on the recent Local Growth Deals and
how this opportunity is being used to fund the transport infrastructure in
Surrey. The scope of the report is limited to the schemes being proposed in
the current funding round, focused on the 2015/16 programme.

Introduction:
Definition of scheme types:
Major
schemes

M

Enterprise M3 and Coast to Capital LEPs define
schemes costing £2m or more in capital costs as
major. These schemes are predominantly focused
on improvements to the highway network – new
roads; enhancement to road junctions, traffic
signals, bridges, congestion bottlenecks, accident
areas; etc.

Sustainable S
Transport
Packages
[STP]

These schemes are predominantly focused on
improving provision for – cyclists; pedestrians and
encouraging use of buses and trains; and can also
include improvements to road junctions, traffic
signals, congestion spots, etc.

Resilience
schemes

These schemes refer to significant maintenance of
the highways infrastructure, to enhance its resilience
to flooding and/or general wear and tear. They also
include schemes aimed at improving traffic flow
across Surrey’s highway network.

R

Page 21

[RESTRICTED]

1.

In February 2013, the Cabinet agreed the importance of promoting
economic growth in Surrey and identified a number of mechanisms to
support that aim. Enterprise M3 and Coast to Capital Local Enterprise
Partnerships (LEPs) were identified as a key route to achieving this aim
and in February 2014, Cabinet agreed an approach to working with both
LEPs on the development of their Strategic Economic Plans [SEPs],
specifically the priority Surrey projects to be included in their bids to
Government.

2.

In July 2014, the Government announced Local Growth Deals for each
of the 39 LEP areas across England, for the 2015 – 2021 periods, based
on their respective SEPs. The Growth Deals set out the level of funding
from the Local Growth Fund (LGF) that will be invested in each area in
2015/16 (along with follow-on funding for the next few years given that
some projects will take several years to complete), as well as for some
projects that have been identified as provisional investment priorities for
future years.

3.

Almost £50 million has been allocated across the two LEP areas, for
specific projects within Surrey, starting in 2015/16. This allocation covers
the themes – Transport, Skills Capital, Enterprise, Housing and Flooding
Resilience. Almost all of the Surrey specific schemes proposed in the
Strategic Economic Plans for 2015/16 were successful, and all the
transport projects put forward by the County Council have secured LGF.
Additional funding will be secured through direct bids to the two LEPs for
LEP wide funding pots, such as sustainable transport funding and
through subsequent annual bids to Government.

7

SEP Programme for 2015/16

4.

For 2015/16 allocation, £11m has been committed for major schemes
across the two LEPs for Surrey. EM3 LEP also secured £4.3m for
sustainable transport, whilst C2C LEP secured £3.7m. C2C additionally
secured £5.5m for resilience schemes. There is a competitive process
for bidding for the sustainable transport and resilience scheme funds.

5.

Schemes for the 2015-16 programmes have been organised into two
tranches, to correspond with the submission dates of September/
October 2014 and December 2014/ January 2015.

Local Contributions
6.

Each LEP require developers to provide match funding / “local
contribution”, for each scheme when the business case is submitted. For
Enterprise M3, this is 25% of the scheme costs and for Coast to Capital,
it varies from 25% for sustainable transport schemes; 20% for transport
major schemes; 15% for maintenance or flood alleviation schemes
(resilience schemes). Most of the schemes currently being considered
are less than £5 million.

Page 22

[RESTRICTED]

7.

In September 2014, Cabinet agreed to provide the County Council’s
share of the local contribution for the first tranche of 2015/16 schemes
from the Economic Regeneration Capital budget. This covered transport
projects that required a detailed business case by the end of October
2014.

8.

Discussions have taken place with the Districts and Boroughs that have
schemes in tranches 1 and 2 to confirm their commitment to the scheme
and to identify the local contribution. During these discussions it became
clear that it would be helpful to develop a framework of criteria to guide
how the local contribution is shared between the District or Borough and
the county council for future submissions i.e. for 2015/16 tranche 2
schemes and 2016/17 onwards.

9.

The following principles have been discussed and agreed at the Surrey
Chief Executives group and are proposed as the basis for a joint
framework:
•

Where a scheme will unlock a significant development opportunity,
the prime beneficiary will be the Borough or District that will realise
greater economic and financial benefits from the development. A
good example of this is the Victoria Arch scheme in Woking. For
this type of scheme, it is recommended that the Borough or District
should make a significant contribution to the funding to reflect the
benefits they will realise.

•

Where a scheme will not lead as directly to development, but will
provide wider network benefits, such as reduced congestion or an
increase in sustainable transport, then it is proposed that the
Borough or District contribution is lower than it might be were
significant development released, as the county council as highway
authority is the prime beneficiary.

•

For resilience schemes, it is proposed that the county council
provides the full local contribution, as these schemes would
otherwise have to be funded from our capital maintenance budget.

•

The whole life maintenance costs of schemes will be provided by
the county council, as highway maintenance is funded by the
Department for Transport through the Maintenance Block Grant.

2015/16 Schemes: 1st tranche
10. Three schemes were submitted as part of the 1st tranche – Runnymede
Roundabout and Egham Sustainable Transport Package [STP] to EM3
LEP and Epsom Plan E to C2C LEP. During August 2014, EM3 LEP
requested earlier submission of mini business cases for Egham STP and
Blackwater Valley Better Connectivity STP schemes by 16 September
2014.

Page 23

7

[RESTRICTED]

11. In October 2014, EM3 LEP approved the business cases for Egham
STP and Blackwater Valley Better Connectivity STP schemes but with
revisions to the LGF contribution.
• For Egham STP, the LGF contribution for year 1 only [2015/16] has
been confirmed but with the LGF funding to span 3 years instead of 2
years as originally proposed. Funding for 2016/17 and 2017/18 are
expected to be confirmed at a later date.

7

• For Blackwater STP scheme, EM3 LEP is prepared to commit up to
£500,000 of LGF funding for 2015/16 but with no current commitment
to funding in future years. As a result, the scheme scope has had to
be re-defined to correspond to the level of funding. It will now be
referred to as Blackwater Valley Better Connectivity STP – Phase 1.
Further phases could be developed, if funding becomes available in
subsequent years.
12. The Cabinet meeting of 23 September 2014 approved allocation of up to
£2.7m from the Economic Regeneration Capital budget, to cover the
required local contribution. Based on current understanding of partner
and S106 developer contributions, the direct cost to SCC for 1st tranche
of schemes is now expected to be £1,777,000.
The following table summarises the previous and revised position,
reflecting the local contributions situation, following agreement with
relevant Boroughs.

Table 1: 1st tranche of schemes showing previous and revised
contributions
LEP /

Scheme name

Est. Const.
Cost

Sche
me
type

Local
contribution
required

Anticipated
SCC local
contribution
share

Anticipated
Borough
local
contribution

S106
Contr.

share

EM3
[M]

Runnymede
R/about,
Runnymede BC

£4,800,000

£1,200,000

£950,000

£250,000

£0

EM3
[S]

Egham STP

£3,700,000

£925,000

£575,000

£250,000

£100,000

C2C

Epsom TC Plan E,
Epsom & Ewell
BC

£2,700,000

£540,000

£252,000

£200,000

£88,000

Total

£11,200,000

£2,665,000

£1,777,000

£700,000

£188,000

[M]

Runnymede BC

2015/16 Schemes: 2nd tranche
13. A total of 8 schemes are being submitted as part of the 2nd tranche – 3
schemes to EM3 and 5 schemes to C2C. These schemes, their costs
and local contributions are detailed in Table 2 below.

Page 24

[RESTRICTED]

14. Although C2C LEP has set aside up to £5.5m for Resilience schemes for
2015/16, it is bidding to government for a further £2m. Therefore, to
maximise our share of the LGF funding, a Resilience package totalling
£8.82m is being recommended. This can be scaled to fit the amount
available from the LEP.
15. During late November 2014, First Great Western decided to make a bid
to the C2C LEP for funding for improving access to Dorking Deepdene
station and its connections with Dorking mainline station, which is served
by Southern Rail. Although local contribution for the scheme is being
fully funded by First Great Western, the business case has been
submitted by Surrey CC as the local transport authority.
16. Although not part of the 2nd tranche, two additional resilience scheme
business cases have been submitted to C2C LEP in December 2014, as
requested, to enable it to ‘place a marker’, should any further funds
become available. These schemes are – A24 Network Resilience, Mole
Valley, [£4.6m] and A217 Network Resilience, Reigate & Banstead,
[£3.225m]. If funded, these schemes would form part of 2016/17 or later
programme. These schemes are not included in the table below.
17. The Sustainable Transport packages and the Resilience Schemes are
bids to allocations of funding held by the LEPs for these types of
schemes rather than provisional allocations against specific schemes.
The bids from Surrey were prioritised as agreed in the 21st October 2014
Cabinet report, “Supporting Economic Growth- Implementing the Local
Growth Deals”.
Table 2: 2nd tranche of prioritised schemes and expected contributions
LEP /

Scheme
name

Est. Const.
Cost

Local
contrib.
required

Respo
nsible

Borough
and
District
share of
local
contributi
on.

SCC share
of local
contributi
on.

Other
contributi
ons.

Blackwater
Valley Better
Connectivity –
Phase 1,
X-boundary
joint with
Hampshire CC

£670,000

£170,000

SCC +
HCC

£0

£0

£170,000
[1]

A30/ A331
Meadows
Gyratory,
S/Heath BC

£4,900,000

£1,225,000

SHBC
+ SCC

£750,000

£0

£475,000
[2]

EM3
[M]

Victoria Arch,
Woking BC

£10,000,000

£2,500,000

WBC

£2,500,000

£0

n/a

C2C

Wider Network
Benefits,
Cross
Boundary

£3,000,000

£600,000

SCC

£0

£600,000

Sche
me
type

EM3
[S]

EM3
[M]

[R]

Page 25

7

[RESTRICTED]
C2C

Greater
Redhill STP,
Reigate &
Banstead BC

£4,900,000

£1,225,000

RBBC

£0

£0

C2C
[R]

A22 Resilience
Tandridge DC

£4,900,000

£735,000

SCC

£0

£735,000

C2C
[R]

A23 Resilience
Reigate &
Banstead BC

£3,920,000

£588,000

SCC

£0

£588,000

C2C

Dorking
Transport
Package –
Phase 1,
Mole Valley
DC

£800,000

£200,000

First
Great
Wester
n

£0

£0

£200,000
[4]

Total

£33,090,000

£7,243,000

£3,250,000

£
1,923,000

£2,070,000

[S]

7

[S]

£1,225,000
[3]

Notes:
[1] Local contribution £170,000 for the Blackwater Valley Better Connectivity – Phase 1
scheme is to be met from the SANGS funding, held by Hampshire CC.
[2] SCC contribution of £475,000 for A30/ A331 Meadows Gyratory scheme is to be met from
the S106/ developers contributions for the scheme, held by SCC.
[3] Local contribution of £1,225,000 for the scheme is to be met from the Horley Master Plan
Agreement, held by SCC.
[4] Local contribution of £200,000 for the Dorking Transport scheme is to be met by First
Great Western Rail company.

Programme for 2016/17 and beyond
18. The choice of schemes for subsequent tranches will be dictated by a
number of criteria, including:
• Inclusion of schemes that have been prioritised by the LEPs and/or
DfT.
• The scale of LGF funding available to each LEP and their specific
priorities.
• The scale of local contribution required for the candidate list of
schemes, the extent of contribution forthcoming from District/
Boroughs and/ or S106/ CIL contributions.
• The resource capacity within SCC to prepare the business cases as
well as to manage delivery of both the on-going and new programme
of work.
19. The following schemes are currently in strong consideration for the
2016/17 programme, whereby the business cases will need to be
submitted during Autumn 2015, with construction to commence during
2016/17. However, the exact programme will be subject to the above
mentioned criteria.

Page 26

[RESTRICTED]

• Guildford Gyratory Package [M]
• Guildford Sustainable Transport Package [S]
• Woking multi-modal transport interchange [M]
• Camberley Town Centre improvements [M]
• Clay Lane, Guildford – Phase 1 Extension [S]
• A217 Strategic maintenance package [b/ case submitted in Dec. 2014] [R]
• A24 Strategic maintenance package [b/ case submitted in Dec. 2014] [R]
• Blackwater Valley Better Connectivity – Phase 2 [S]

20. Despite the absence of any commitment of funding for the larger
schemes, preparatory work is being undertaken for the following
schemes:
• Kiln Lane Link, [M], Epsom & Ewell [est. cost: £22m]
• Staines Bridge, [M], Spelthorne [est. cost: £12.6m]
• Wider Staines-upon-Thames STP – Phase 1, [S], [est. cost: £5.0m]
• Woking STP, [S], Woking [est. cost: £7.5m]
• A3 strategic improvements linked to Guildford-Woking Connectivity
Project [M]

Page 27

7

[RESTRICTED]

Conclusions:

7

21. Surrey County Council can claim some credit for the LGF allocation
given for transport infrastructure to Enterprise M3 and Coast to Capital
LEPs, on the basis of the quality of ‘expression of interest’ submissions
made in December 2013 and March 2014. In addition, SCC has carried
good credibility with DfT for the deliverability of it major transport
schemes, within time and budget. As a consequence, SCC will have
submitted business cases for 11 schemes during 2014/15, with
construction to start during 2015/16. Assuming that they all are
approved, it would result in LGF investment of £ 33.78m in Surrey’s
transport infrastructure.
22. During 2013/ 2014, preparatory effort has been focused almost entirely
on the 101 business cases for the Tranche 1 & 2 submissions, due
during October – December 2014 and January 2015. Work on the
schemes for 2016/17 programme, with business cases due in October
2015, is to commence from start of 2015.
Recommendations:
23. To endorse the proposed schemes for 2016/17 programme and beyond.
24. For the Select Committee to support the commitment for sufficient
resourcing to enable the programme for 2016/17 and beyond to be
pursued without compromises; recognising that smaller major schemes
[less than £5m] require about 1-3 years of committed resource for the
production of a credible business case, whilst larger schemes require
longer time-frame and resource.
Next steps:
25. Submission of the 2nd tranche of business cases on 30 January 2015 –
‘Wider Network Benefits scheme’ to C2C LEP; ‘A30/ A331 Meadows
Gyratory’ and ‘Victoria Arch’ schemes to EM3 LEP.
26. Following LEP approval for the business cases submitted, detailed
design and procurement for the approved schemes will be undertaken.
Cabinet approval will be sought to award tenders. All partner
organisations will be informed of the outcomes and plans.
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contact: Lyndon Mendes, Transport Policy Team Manager
Contact details: 020 8541 9393; lyndon.mendes@surreycc.gov.uk
1

A total of 13 business cases will have been submitted, though only 11 relate to the 2015/16
programme. Of these 11, Woking BC has been responsible for preparing the business case
for Victoria Arch.

Page 28

[RESTRICTED]

Annexes:
There are no annexes to this report.
Sources/background papers:
Cabinet Report, ‘Supporting the economy through investment in transport
infrastructure’, 27 November 2012.
Cabinet Report, ‘Supporting Economic Growth’, 25 February 2014.
Cabinet Report, ‘Supporting Economic Growth through investment in Highways
infrastructure’, 23 September 2014.
Cabinet Report, ‘Supporting Economic Growth – implementing the Local Growth
deals’, 21 October 2014.
Cabinet Report, ‘Supporting economic growth through investment in highways
infrastructure – Second tranche’, 16 December 2012.

Page 29

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30

What has the Local Growth Fund [LGF] ever done for us in Surrey?

LGF
2015 – 2021
allocation

Page 31

£
£

£
£

£

LGF Themes
 Transport
 Skills Capital
 Enterprise
 Housing
 Flooding Resilience

 EM3 LEP
£50m
 C2C LEP


 37 other LEPs




Surrey CC

Fn: For E&T Select Committee – 22 Jan 2015 – LGF Report presentation

P1

7

7

What has the Local Growth Fund [LGF] ever done for us in Surrey?
m
S
r

Major
Sustainability package
Resilience

2015/16 Delivery Programme

Tranche-1 submission: Oct. / Nov. 2014

Tranche-2 submission: Dec. 14 / Jan. 2015

Page 32

 EM3: Runnymede Roundabout

[£4.8m] m

 EM3: Blackwater Valley – Phase 1

[£0.67m] S

 EM3: Egham STP

[£3.7m] S

• EM3: A30/ A331 Meadows Gyratory

[£4.9m]

• C2C: Epsom Town Centre Plan E

[£2.7m] m

• EM3: Victoria Arch, Woking

[£10.0m] m

• C2C: Wider Network Benefits

[£3.0m]

r

• C2C: Greater Redhill STP

[£4.9m]

S
r

m

• Total scheme estimated costs

[£11.2m]

• C2C: A22 Resilience scheme, Tandridge DC

[£4.9m]

• Local contribution required

[£2.66m]

• C2C: A23 Resilience scheme, R&BBC

[£3.92m] r

• LGF ask

[£8.54m]

• C2C: Dorking Transport Package

[0.80m]

• SCC contribution

[£1.77m]

• Total scheme estimated costs

[£33.1m]

• Borough contribution

[£0.7m]

• Local contribution required

[£7.24m]

• S106 contribution

[£0.18m]

• LGF ask

[£24.8m]

• SCC contribution

[£1.92m]

• Borough contribution

[£3.25m]

• S106 / other contributions

[£2.07m]

Total LGF ask for 2015/16 = £34.38m
Fn: For E&T Select Committee – 22 Jan 2015 – LGF Report presentation

S

P2

What the Local Growth Fund [LGF] might do for us in Surrey?
m
S
r

Major
Sustainability package
Resilience

2016/17 Delivery Programme & beyond

Tranche-3 submission: October 2015

Large schemes beyond 2016/17

• The following schemes are strong candidates. However, actual
choice of schemes will depend on - LEP priorities, available
funding, SCC and partner contributions.

• C2C: Kiln Lane Link, Epsom & Ewell

• EM3: Guildford Sustainable Transport Package

[£4.46m] m • EM3: Staines Bridge
[£4.95m] S • EM3: Wider Staines-upon-Thames STP – Ph.1

• EM3: Clay Lane, Guildford – Phase 1 extension

[£1.3m].

S

• EM3: Woking multi-modal transport interchange

[£7.7m]

m

• EM3: Blackwater Valley Better Connectivity – Ph2

[£1.0m]

S

• C2C: Camberley Town Centre improvements

[£5.0m]

m

• C2C: A217 Network Resilience, R&BBC

[£3.22m]

r

• C2C: A24 Strategic Maintenance, Mole Valley

[£4.6m]

r

Page 33

• EM3: Guildford Gyratory Package

[£22.0m] m
[£12.6m] m
[£5.0m] S
[£7.5m] S

• EM3: Woking STP

• EM3: A3 strategic improvements – Guildford-Woking
Connectivity

B/ Cases submitted in Dec. 2014

Fn: For E&T Select Committee – 22 Jan 2015 – LGF Report presentation

P3

m

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34

[RESTRICTED]
Item
8

Environment & Transport Select Committee
22 January 2015
Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy Revision 2 (2015)

Purpose of the report: Policy development and review
This report introduces the revised joint waste management strategy (Annexe
1), which is recommended for adoption by the Cabinet subject to approval by
the Committee.

Introduction:
1.

The authorities in two-tier counties such as Surrey have different
responsibilities for managing waste and recycling. The districts and
boroughs are responsible for its collection and the county council is
responsible for its treatment and disposal.

2.

To ensure that the authorities work together to manage the waste in a
coherent way, the law1 requires two-tier areas to produce a joint strategy
for the management of municipal waste, and keep this under review.

3.

In 2006, the Waste Members’ Group of the Surrey Local Government
Association (SLGA) produced the first Joint Municipal Waste
Management Strategy for Surrey, which was adopted by Surrey County
Council.

4.

The SLGA Waste Members’ Group then became Surrey Waste
Partnership (SWP). This includes all of Surrey’s authorities and is the
main forum through which waste management matters are discussed
and improvement actions are agreed. To reflect the dynamic nature of
waste management in Surrey, SWP produced a revision of the joint
strategy in 2010.

5.

Again, much change has occurred since the 2010 revision and a second
revision has now been prepared in order to ensure that our joint actions
for the next ten years reflect the needs of our current times and
aspirations for the future. This comprehensive revision includes a new

1

Waste Emissions and Trading Act 2003

Page 35

8

[RESTRICTED]

aim, objectives and targets which are supported by a new set of specific
and measurable actions.
6.

The revised strategy was developed by combining the input of:
•

•
•
8

Officers and Members of Surrey Waste Partnership via a project
steering group (including Cllr Mike Goodman) and scrutiny at
Partnership meetings
Best practice examples of other joint waste strategies
A consultation of residents and other key stakeholders

7.

The consultation exercise took place between July and October 2014
and focused on identifying residents’ barriers to reducing, reusing and
recycling more of their waste. Other stakeholders included the waste
management industry, businesses, environment and conservation
groups and other local authorities.

8.

This Environment and Transport Select Committee was also included in
the consultation and Members provided their input at the meeting in July
2014.

9.

The feedback from the consultation was incorporated into the final draft
of the strategy which is commended to you by Surrey Waste Partnership
for adoption by Surrey County Council.

10. This paper introduces Annexe 1, the revised strategy document
(attached) and provides a brief summary of its key sections.
Past Performance
11. Much has been achieved since 2006, and Surrey County Council has
actively participated in partnership working, making it responsible for
many of the successes. Collection arrangements have largely been
aligned, the range of recycling materials able to be collected has greatly
increased and waste food collection from houses is now universal.
Surrey’s recycling rate has increased from 31% to 52% in 2013/14 and
waste to landfill has decreased from 67% to only 11%.
Current challenges
12. Whilst progress has been made over the last few years, we are now
facing a number of serious challenges:
•
•
•
•

Stalling performance
Changing legislation and regulation
Increasing population
Budget pressures

Page 36

[RESTRICTED]

Aims and Targets
13. Surrey’s authorities can and must continue to improve in order to
succeed against the challenges described above; therefore the strategy
has an ambitious aim - to be the leading county area in England for
waste management. It is proposed that performance against the aim is
measured periodically using the following indicators:
•
•
•
•

Household waste and recycling per person (kg)
Recycling and recovery rate (%)
Municipal waste sent to landfill (%)
Cost per household (£)

14. Targets against each of these indicators are presented in the revised
strategy document (Annexe 1).
Objectives and actions
15. To achieve the strategy’s challenging aim and meet the targets, the
following high level objectives set out what should be done:
•
•
•

Provide a high quality service
Work with others
Maximise value from waste materials

16. These objectives are broken down into work areas containing specific
actions within Annexe 1. The successful delivery of these will help to
achieve this revised strategy’s targets.
Plan for delivery
17. To deliver the strategy successfully, each partner, including Surrey
County Council, is required to develop an operational plan which delivers
the actions. Delivery will be monitored annually, and the annual review
will be considered by the Partnership. Being able to hold one another to
account is key to realising the collective and individual benefits, whilst
maintaining local responsibility for locally agreed operational plans is key
to local governance.
18. Targets and actions will be revised periodically during the life of the
strategy, and a further revision of the whole document is anticipated as
being necessary in 2019/20.
Conclusions:
19. This second revision of the joint waste strategy has been produced via a
thorough and inclusive process. The successful completion of its actions
will result in higher performing, better value waste services for Surrey.
20. Adoption is commended to Surrey County Council by the Waste
Members’ Group, and the Waste Officers’ Group of Surrey Waste
Partnership.

Page 37

8

[RESTRICTED]

21. Adoption is concurrently being considered by all 12 partner authorities. It
should be noted that minor revisions to this version of the strategy
document may be required as a result of partners’ approvals processes.
Recommendations:
22. It is recommended that the Environment and Transport Select
Committee:
8

22.1 Approve the adoption of the Joint Municipal Waste Management
Strategy Revision 2 (2015)
22.2 Support the adoption of the revised strategy by Surrey County
Council at the next cabinet meeting.
Next steps:
Submit the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy Revision 2 (2015) to
Cabinet on 24 February 2015 for approval and adoption.
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contact:
Tom Beagan, Waste Policy and Partnerships Manager:
tom.beagan@surreycc.gov.uk, 020 8213 2625
Sources/background papers:
Annexe 1 - Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy Revision 2 (2015)

Page 38

Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy
Revision 2 (2015)
8

Contents
1

Introduction ..................................................................................... 1

2

Background ...................................................................................... 4

3

Aim and targets ................................................................................. 8

4

Core values ..................................................................................... 10

5

Objectives ...................................................................................... 11

6

Actions and outcomes ........................................................................ 11

7

Plan for delivery ............................................................................... 21

8

Glossary of terms .............................................................................. 22

1

Introduction

This is the Surrey Waste Partnership’s plan for managing Surrey’s waste for the next ten
years, up until 2024/25. It is the second revision of a strategy which was first published in
2006 then revised in 2010. It has been updated to ensure we continue to manage Surrey’s
waste in the best way and work towards higher performing, better value waste services for
the future. As part of this revision, we have consulted with a wide range of residents and
other interested groups, to take their views into account.
1.1

The Surrey Waste Partnership – who are we and what do we do?

We are the Surrey Waste Partnership (SWP) which is made up of Surrey County Council
(SCC) and the 11 district and borough councils in Surrey (shown in Figure 1). SWP aims to
manage Surrey's waste in the most efficient, effective, economical and sustainable
manner.

Page 39

1

8

Figure 1: Map of Surrey showing the district and boroughs

The 11 district and borough councils are Waste Collection Authorities (WCAs) and are
responsible for the collection of Surrey’s municipal waste which includes waste from
households. SCC is the Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) and is responsible for the disposal
and treatment of Surrey’s municipal waste collected at the kerbside and waste and
recycling from Surrey’s Community Recycling Centres (CRCs).
The WCAs provide residents with a kerbside collection service for household waste and
recycling. All WCAs currently collect recycling and residual waste on alternate weeks,
alongside a weekly food waste recycling collection and an optional (charged for) garden
waste collection. As part of this service, all WCAs offer the collection of the following ‘dry
recyclables’:
Glass bottles and jars
Paper and cardboard
Metal tins and cans
Plastic bottles, pots, tubs and trays
Additional materials such as textiles, waste electrical items, batteries, foil, aerosols and
Tetra Pak cartons are collected by some, but not all WCAs. Additionally, all WCAs provide
bulky waste collections, local recycling banks or bring sites, street sweeping services and,
in some cases, commercial waste collections.
SCC has two key roles as a WDA. First, it makes arrangements for the acceptance of
municipal waste collected by WCAs and the provision of facilities for its treatment and
disposal. Secondly, it provides CRCs for residents to recycle and dispose of their municipal
waste. So far as it is practicable, CRCs are designed and operated so that all residents can
use them.

Page 40

2

1.2

Why do we have a joint waste strategy?

The roles of the WCAs and the WDA in Surrey are different, but both manage the same
waste. To do this effectively, all SWP partners recognise the need to work together. We
have a joint strategy to plan how the WCAs and the WDA will work with each other to
manage Surrey’s waste in the best way.
1.3

Why are we revising the strategy?

The waste management industry is influenced by many factors which change regularly
such as: environmental laws, markets for waste materials, new technologies, economic
conditions and national and local politics. It has been five years since the previous
strategy revision, so it is time to revise it again to make sure that our plans are based on
the most up-to-date picture of the industry. By revising the strategy, we are also:

8

Ensuring that Surrey tax payers are getting a consistent and value for money waste
service.
Re-focusing the activities of SWP.
Helping residents, businesses and other stakeholders to understand our aims and
work with us to reach our objectives.
Complying with our legal duty to have a joint waste strategy and keep it under
review.
1.4

How does the strategy work?

This strategy document is broken into several sections. These are:
Background – explaining how we have managed waste in the past, how we
performed against the requirements of the previous strategy and the challenges
that we currently face as a partnership.
Aim and targets – explaining the aim of this strategy and the targets that we will
use to measure our performance against the aim.
Core values – these are the important considerations that will be in our minds
when we implement the strategy.
Objectives – high level statements of what we are planning to achieve with the
strategy.
Actions and outcomes – a detailed breakdown of the work required to achieve
each objective and the overall aim and targets. This section will form the basis of
each partner’s own operational plan, which will result in improvements on the
ground.
Plan for delivery – this sets out: responsibilities for delivering the strategy; how
we plan to monitor and evaluate our performance; and the process for revision.
Most of the above sections will remain unchanged until the strategy is next reviewed.
However the ‘actions and outcomes’ section is more detailed and therefore sensitive to
short-term changes in the waste industry, so it will be reviewed more frequently, as
described in Section 7.3.

Page 41

3

2

Background

2.1

Past performance

The vision set out in the previous version of the strategy was for a county in which
resources are used and managed efficiently so that:
the amount of waste produced will continue to be reduced or reused,
materials reused, recycled or composted will exceed 70%, and
the environment will be protected and enhanced for future generations.

8

This vision was supported by five policies and 32 actions. We have performed well against
many of these actions, with achievements since 2010 that include:
Aligning collection methodologies for nine out of the eleven WCAs.
Providing recycling facilities for a wide range of materials including introducing
kerbside food waste collections in all Surrey districts and boroughs.
Redeveloping a number of CRCs to improve access and quality of service for the
public.
Successful behaviour change initiatives promoting activities such as food waste
reduction and recycling and home composting.
Promoting the reuse of furniture and white goods whilst supporting disadvantaged
residents and low income households through the Surrey Reuse Network.
Exploiting opportunities for partnership working including selling materials
together, such as garden waste and textiles, and forming a project to join up
kerbside collection services in at least four Surrey WCAs.
Performance in some of the other key areas is described below.
Waste reduction
The quantity of household waste generated in Surrey has decreased by around 50,000
tonnes since its peak in 2007/8 (see Figure 2) despite population increases during this
time.
600,000
580,000
560,000
540,000
520,000
500,000
480,000
2006/07

2007/08

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

Total Household Waste (tonnes)
Figure 2: Total household waste produced in Surrey

Page 42

4

The previous strategy revision aimed to continue the downward trend by reducing
household waste by 30,000 tonnes between 2009/10 and 2013/14. We were on target to
achieve this, with a 25,000 tonne decrease recorded in 2012/13, however there was a
significant increase in 2013/14 which went against the downward trend and meant that
the target was not met. This increase is thought to be caused by a combination of factors,
including:
Extreme weather in the final quarter which resulted in a large amount of extra
waste from flood damage, street sweepings and power outages.
Possible increases in consumerism as a result of a return to pre-financial crisis
levels of economic growth.

8

2013/14 could have been an unusual year, but we will continue to monitor performance
closely to see if this is the start of an increasing trend.
Landfill diversion and recycling
The amount of waste sent to landfill has declined dramatically from 67% in 2006/07 to 11%
today (see Figure 3) making us one of the leading authorities in the country. Reducing
waste to landfill even further remains a key priority.
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

31%
52%

67%

11%
2006/07

2007/08

2008/09
Landfill

2009/10

2010/11

Energy recovery

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

Recycling

Figure 3: Proportion of waste recycled, recovered and landfilled

Recycling has increased from 31% in 2006/7 to 52% in 2013/14, which is a significant
achievement, however we haven’t met our aspirational target of 70% recycling. Whilst this
target was always ambitious, some changes in legislation around the categorisation of
waste materials (e.g. wood and leaf fall) have made reaching 70% recycling even more
challenging. Yet Surrey is still a top performer nationally for recycling compared against
other similar authorities.
Cost of waste management
Waste and recycling is extremely expensive to manage. The net cost of managing Surrey’s
waste and recycling in 2013/14 was estimated to be £76 million. However, despite a rise
in population and increases in the cost of waste disposal (e.g. landfill tax and haulage cost
increases) the net cost has been contained at 2010 levels (see Figure 4). This represents a
significant increase in value for money for the Surrey tax payer.

Page 43

5

Budget (millions)

8

£90
£80
£70
£60
£50
£40
£30
£20
£10
£0
2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

Figure 4: Budget estimates for the net total cost of waste management in Surrey

2.2

Current composition of waste

In order to manage our waste effectively we need to know what is in it. To work this out
we did a detailed composition analysis of our household waste and recycling from kerbside
collections and CRCs in 2013/14. The proportions of the different materials are shown in
Figure 5.

Figure 5: Composition of waste and recycling from the kerbside and CRCs in 2013/14

The composition shown in Figure 5 provides a strong indication of the types and
proportions of materials that we will plan to manage as part of this strategy.
2.3

Current challenges

Whilst progress has been made over the last few years, we now have to overcome a
number of challenges in order to make further improvements:

Page 44

6

Performance has stalled
Recycling rates have started to level off and major changes will be required to make any
significant improvements in the future. As Figure 6 shows, there is much variation in
recycling performance amongst WCAs, with a 17% gap between the highest and lowest.

Surrey County Council (CRCs)

58%

Surrey Heath

58%

Woking

55%

Mole Valley

8

53%

Guildford

52%

Reigate & Banstead

52%

Tandridge

51%

Elmbridge

49%

Epsom & Ewell

46%

Waverley

45%

Runnymede

42%

Spelthorne

41%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Figure 6: Household recycling rates in 2013/14 by partner authority

In addition, there was a big increase in total household waste in 2013/14 which may be
the start of an increasing trend.
Changing legislation and regulation
Some waste disposal processes (e.g. composting of street-swept leaf fall) can no longer be
counted towards recycling targets. In addition to this, revised Waste Regulations1 came
into force on 1 January 2015. These require authorities to collect paper, glass, metal and
plastic by way of separate collection unless it is not necessary to increase the quality of
the recycling, and it is not technically, environmentally or economically practicable to do
so. This means that we must continually assess our methods for collecting waste to make
sure that they are compliant with the new regulations.
Increasing population
Surrey’s population is projected to rise by 89,000 people (an 8% increase) over the
strategy period. This along with the associated increase in new homes will result in more
waste and therefore more pressure on our services.
Budget pressures
Increases in population along with continued reduction in funding from central government
will put pressure on all council services. It is expected that local authorities will have to
make difficult choices about the services that they can provide in the future and waste
1

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2011/988/contents/made

Page 45

7

collection and management will be seen as a key area for saving money. However, this is
not likely to be straightforward because of the challenges outlined above and the fact that
transporting and disposing of waste is likely to get more expensive in the future.
These challenges mean that the current situation is unsustainable and we need to look at
new ways of working together to reduce costs and increase performance whilst still
providing a high quality service to Surrey residents.

3
8

Aim and targets

Surrey is already a high performing county but we can and must continue to improve in
order to succeed against the challenges described above. We have therefore adopted the
following ambitious aim for this strategy: To be the leading county area in England for
waste management.
But what makes a leading county area for waste management? There are several
performance indicators that we can use to define this, and we think that the most suitable
of these are as follows:
Household waste per person - By far the best way to manage waste is to prevent it
occurring in the first place (see Figure 7). This indicator shows how much waste we
produce each year as individuals and therefore how much we need to focus on reducing
our waste. Rather than using a specific target (expressed as kg/person/year), we think
that it is fairer to use a relative target, i.e. comparing Surrey to other authorities. This
is because household waste per person is affected by factors outside of our control,
such as the state of the economy, and as all other counties will be subject to these
factors too, it is a fair way of monitoring performance.
Recycling and recovery rate - Rather than using the standard recycling rate metric, as
described in Section 2, we think that a more suitable indicator takes into account both
recycling and the recovery of certain materials2 where recovery is preferable to
recycling. The indicator that we are using is about ‘doing the right thing’ with each
material and managing it as far up the waste hierarchy (see Figure 7) as reasonably
possible, e.g. recovering energy from wood waste that is not clean enough for
recycling.
The standard recycling indicator3 has been subject to changes by the government,
including a ban on recycling street-swept leaves, and could be changed again in the
future. By using a new indicator that we have control over, we can keep it the same
during the strategy period so that it remains a valid way of assessing our performance.
Percentage of waste sent to landfill - Landfill is the least favourable way of managing
waste and we want to minimise landfill as much as possible by complying with the
waste hierarchy (Figure 7). This indicator will help to show how successful we have
been at doing this.

2
3

Street sweepings and non-clean wood waste
National Indicator 192

Page 46

8

Most favourable

8
Figure 7: The waste hierarchy.

Cost of waste management per household - As Section 2 shows, waste is very
expensive to manage and there is currently a strong imperative for local government to
reduce its costs. This indicator will show us how well we are controlling the cost of
waste for the average Surrey household.
‘The leading county area for waste management’ will perform well against all of the
above indicators. However, it does not necessarily have to be the best in the country for
each indicator as this may not be possible due to differences in geography. For example a
rural county area is likely to have a high cost per household because houses are widely
spaced which make collections less efficient.
We have looked at the performance of other county areas and assessed Surrey’s potential
for improvement given its local constraints. From this we have developed targets against
each indicator which are shown in Table 1.
Table 1: Strategy targets

#
1
2
3
4

Indicator
Total household waste and
recycling per person
Recycling and recovery
rate4
Percentage of municipal
waste sent to landfill

2013/14 performance
Quartile 3
(463 kg/person)
59%

2019/20 target
Quartile 1

11%

0%

Cost of waste management
per household

£158

No increase from 2013/14

70%

The targets in Table 1 are to be achieved by the end of the year 2019/20 which is the
middle year of the strategy period. They will be reviewed in 2019/20 for the remainder of
the strategy period up to 2024/25.

4

Based on National Indicator 192 calculation methodology, plus recovered street sweepings and recovered
wood waste

Page 47

9

4

Core values

In order to achieve our aim and meet our targets, we must deliver the work which is
described in the sections below. To ensure that we do this effectively we have produced
the following core values which we will always consider when undertaking our work:
Meeting the future needs of communities

8

We will ensure that the actions deliver a high quality service to everyone in our
communities, both now and in the future. Past disposal routes such as landfill have
resulted in long term environmental impacts and costs. This strategy is designed to avoid
such issues for future generations.
Working in partnership
We will seek to work with the right partners from the public, private and community
sectors that can help us to achieve our aim. This will include work with government and
the private sector to reduce the quantity of materials entering the waste stream and work
with the community sector to develop comprehensive systems of reuse.
As SWP partners, we must also work effectively with each other. To help us do this, we
will work together more collaboratively, making more joint decisions and sharing budgets
where feasible.
Best value to residents
We will seek to provide the best value to our residents through delivering waste
management services that are both high quality and cost effective. We will work hard to
continually improve the efficiency, effectiveness and cost of the services we provide.
Sustainable environment, society and economy
We will apply the principles of sustainable development. This takes into account three
‘pillars’ – our environment, society and the economy5. The development of our waste
services will seek to protect our environment, support the wellbeing of Surrey’s residents
and benefit our economy, both now and in the future.
Treat waste as a resource
Traditionally waste has been viewed as something to be discarded. However, in line with
national government policy we want to move towards a future where waste materials are
fully valued, financially and environmentally. It means we reduce, reuse and recycle all
we can, and throw things away only as a last resort.
Innovative thinking
We will develop new and innovative approaches to improve waste management. As part of
this, we will move away from a culture of trying to solve our ‘waste problem’, towards
positioning ourselves as suppliers of valuable commodities and fuel.

5

Guiding Principles for Sustainable Development, DEFRA

Page 48

10

Future needs
of
communities

Innovative
thinking

Working in
partnership

Core
values
Treat waste
as a resource

8
Best value to
the taxpayer

Sustainability

Figure 8: Our core values

5

Objectives

We have set a challenging and ambitious aim for this strategy. To achieve this, the
following high level objectives set out what we are going to do:
High quality service: We will provide a high quality service that residents and businesses
like, understand and use to its full potential.
Work with others: We will work innovatively with product manufacturers, community
groups, other local authorities and the waste management companies to improve how we
manage waste.
Maximise value: We will encourage and enable residents to deliver waste materials in the
best way, then we will sustainably manage these materials to obtain maximum value.

6

Actions and outcomes

This section takes the objectives above and breaks them down further into work areas
containing specific actions. These actions are detailed and represent the views of our
officers, elected members, residents and other industry stakeholders on how to improve
the management of Surrey’s waste.
The actions are shown in the tables below. Each action is accompanied by one or more
‘outcomes’ which are measurable indicators that will be used to show if the action has
been achieved or not. The successful delivery of the actions will help to achieve this
strategy’s targets. To demonstrate how each action relates to the targets, the third
column in each table gives the numbers of the targets which will be most influenced.
These actions will be taken by each partner and turned into operational plans, which can
then be delivered on the ground.

Page 49

11

High quality service

Regularly producing customer service surveys to find
out what the barriers are to improving waste
management and how we can improve the quality of
the information that we provide

Providing simple, accessible and effective
communication routes to give feedback

1

2

A question on the ease of accessibility of information is included in
the above surveys

Periodic and targeted customer service surveys for waste
management are produced and analysed at least once every three
years.

Outcomes

1,2,3,4

Contributes
to target #
1,2,3,4

Action

Telling residents and businesses why it is important to
reduce their waste and how they can do it

Providing all new residents with full information about
their waste and recycling service

Engaging with specific residents and businesses that
do not present recyclables for collection, or present
contaminated recyclables for collection to understand
their barriers to recycling and help overcome them

#

1

Page 50

2

3

12

Information packs for new residents based on a best practice
standardised format have been produced and are being issued to all
new residents by 1 January 2016
Each authority has a local procedure in place for following up
contaminated collections by 1 January 2016
Each authority sees a year-on-year reduction in rate of
contaminated recycling bin rejections

Include waste reduction as part of the county-wide communications
campaigns described in Work area 7

Outcomes

1,2,3,4

1,2,3,4

Contributes
to target #
1,4

All
partners

All
partners

Who?

All WCAs

All WCAs

All
partners

Who?

Work area 2: Residents and businesses need to understand their role in waste management so that they feel engaged in the process and
participate fully. We will make sure that residents including those with protected characteristics, and businesses understand their role in
improving waste management by:

Action

#

Work area 1: In order to deliver a high quality service, we must take the views of residents including those with protected characteristics, and
businesses into account. We will do this by:

6.1

8

Page 51

An annual charter is issued on the SWP website by July each year

Outcomes

Contributes
to target #
1,2,3,4

SWP
manager

Who?

Engaging with and empowering volunteer and
community groups

1

A partnership community engagement plan is produced by 1
January 2016 and is kept under annual review
The community engagement plan includes actions that add social
value to communities

Outcomes

Contributes
to target #
1,2,3,4

SWP
manager

Who?

Action

Get better deals for goods and services e.g. new
collection vehicles

Get better deals for contracts from waste
management companies for collecting and/or
managing our waste

#

1

2

13

Waste management related contracts, products and services are
procured jointly unless deemed impractical after consultation with
other partners
The end dates of new waste management contracts are
synchronised across similar contracts let by other SWP authorities
to maximise opportunities for future joint procurement
The costs of waste products and services reduce each year after
the impact of inflation has been taken into account.

Outcomes

Contributes
to target #
4

All
partners

Who?

Work area 4: Working more effectively with other local authorities can improve performance and reduce costs due to economies of scale. We
will work with other local authorities, both inside and outside of Surrey, to:

Action

#

Work area 3: We must engage with our communities to ensure they have sufficient support to improve waste management. We will support
communities by:

Work with others

Publishing a charter each year showing residents and
businesses where their waste and recycling is being
sent for treatment

4

6.2

Action

#

8

Clearly agree with reprocessors on what materials can
be recycled, and pass on this information to our
residents and businesses

Make sure that both the Surrey taxpayer and the
reprocessor get the best deal possible from selling the
recyclables that we produce

1

2

Soft market testing is done on each material stream at least twice
a year
If prices are significantly worse than the market price, corrective
action is taken where possible within the constraints of the
contract

MRF and reprocessor input contamination rates are checked
quarterly by each authority and show a year-on-year reduction

Outcomes

4

Contributes
to target #
2,3,4

All
partners

All
partners

Who?

Action

Lobby product manufacturers and retailers to design
household products that minimise waste and are easy
to recycle

Lobby central government to develop legislation that
facilitates the reduction of waste and increases high
quality recycling

#

1

2

Page 52
14

SWP has provided a unified response to all relevant government
consultations regarding waste management
SWP actively lobbies central government on key matters

The SWP is represented at all relevant forums and is in attendance
at all relevant events involving waste authorities and product
manufacturers

Outcomes

1,2,3,4

Contributes
to target #
1,2,3,4

SWP
manager

SWP
manager

Who?

Work area 6: The waste materials that Surrey produces are a large and valuable resource. We will use our influence as a major supplier of
materials to:

Action

#

Work area 5: In Surrey, we work closely with the private sector in order to deliver some of our waste management services, but we could work
together more effectively. We will work with the private sector companies that process our waste to:

8

Page 53

Maximise value

Action

Enabling residents to recycle any material where it is
environmentally and financially beneficial to do so – at
home, at community recycling centres and on the go

Ensuring controls are in place so that all new
developments have sufficient space for waste and
recycling containers

Increasing the proportion of bulky waste that is reused
and recycled

Providing residents with as much capacity (bin space)
for recycling as they need. This excludes garden waste
which is chargeable throughout Surrey.

Reducing capacity for non-recyclable waste at the
kerbside, to encourage residents to minimise their
waste and use recycling bins

#

1

2

3

4

5

All
partners

All WCAs

All WCAs

2,3

2,3,4

1,2,3,4

Each authority reuses and recycles at least 30% of bulky waste in
2016/17 and 40% in 2017/18
Each authority undertakes reuse and recycling using the community
sector wherever possible
All WCAs provide free unlimited capacity for recycling (excluding
garden waste) by 1 October 2015

All WCAs are enforcing policies for no side-waste and closed lids on
residual bins by 1 October 2015
Each WCA has provided each households with no more than 360
litres of residual waste capacity per month as standard by the end
of each WCA’s bin stock life or by 1 April 2020, whichever is sooner

15

All WCAs

All
partners

Who?

2,3,4

Contributes
to target #
2,3,4

Each new development in a WCA’s area has sufficient space for all
recycling containers necessary to provide the full collection service

Waste hierarchy assessments take place as part of Waste
Regulations compliance assessments (see Work area 10). These will
determine if it is viable to recycle new materials.

Outcomes

Work area 7: By reducing the amount of waste produced by residents and maximising the proportion that is recycled, we can obtain more
valuable recyclable materials and help the environment. We will do this by:

6.3

8

Page 54

Using targeted communication campaigns to increase
recycling in the priority areas (identified by the six
monthly analyses above)

Publicising any changes to collection services with
clear and comprehensive information

8

Regularly identifying where and how recycling can be
increased

6

7

Action

#

16

SWP communications guidance is used to provide clear
communications
Each campaign performs well when evaluated using the SWP
monitoring and evaluation template

A high level annual assessment identifying recycling rates for
individual materials is produced by SWP for each partner authority
From 1 April 2015, the WDA undertakes assessments at least once a
quarter of recycling rates for each material at each CRC and
identifies priority areas and improvement options
From 1 April 2015, all WCAs undertake assessments at least once a
quarter, of:
o MRF and reprocessor input contamination rates to determine
what the contaminants are
o Containers that are rejected because of contamination and
where the problem areas are
o Recycling rates at the individual round level to identify areas
with high and low recycling rates
All WCAs undertake assessments of participation rates using the
latest guidance and identify where problem areas are
Results of the above assessments are reported to SWP and
summarised twice annually at the meetings
Measured improvements in priority areas for the above indicators

Outcomes

8
1,2,3,4

1,2,3,4

Contributes
to target #
N/A

All WCAs

All
partners

All
partners

Who?

Page 55

Making communications campaigns more consistent
across the county in order to increase their efficiency
and maximise their impact

9

From 1 April 2015:
Have agreed a timetable for county-wide communications
campaigns
Use ‘Recycle for Surrey’ branding on all communications
Abide by SWP guidance for consistency in local service
communications
Use the SWP template for monitoring and evaluating
communications campaigns

Outcomes

Contributes
to target #
1,2,3,4

All
partners

Who?

Not collecting recycling containers containing
contaminating waste materials, with clear information
given to the affected resident as to why, and how
they can reduce contamination in future

1

Annual reductions in MRF and reprocessor input contamination
rates
All WCAs provide regular training to crews on managing
contamination by 1 January 2016

Outcomes

Action

Collecting the same materials in the same way across
Surrey

#

1

17

At the end of each WCA’s materials management contract for each
material, or by 1 April 2020, whichever is sooner all WCAs will
collect and present each household material stream in the same
way
At the end of each WCA’s bin stock life or by 1 April 2020,
whichever is sooner, all WCAs will have an agreed form of
consistent colour coding for their bins(for example bin bodies, or
bin lids, or bin stickers).

Outcomes

Work area 9: We will get the best deals for all waste materials that we manage by:

Action

#

Contributes
to target #
2,3

Contributes
to target #
4

All WCAs

Who?

All WCAs

Who?

Work area 8: We want our recyclable material to be as good quality as possible so that it can be turned into high quality products. We will
maximise the quality of our recyclable materials by:

Action

#

8

Pooling and centrally managing all the material from
each waste stream in Surrey, using economies of scale
to attract the best possible prices

Investing in developing waste management
infrastructure as appropriate, to give us more control
over how materials are managed and help us ensure
that we are getting the best deal environmentally and
financially

2

3
An options appraisal for developing infrastructure for at least dry
recyclables and textiles has been undertaken by 1 July 2015

Each material waste stream is being centrally managed for all
authorities once existing contracts have expired, if not before

Outcomes

4

Contributes
to target #
4

SCC

All
partners

Who?

Action

Testing all of our collection systems against the
requirements of the law and in particular assessing
their cost and environmental impacts to make sure
that they are compliant.

#

1

Page 56
18

A Waste Regulations compliance assessment is undertaken and
documented (at the individual authority level) whenever changes
are proposed regarding
o The availability of recycling techniques and accessible
facilities for materials that are currently difficult to recycle.
o The cost of vehicles.
o The cost of staff, value of recyclables and the costs of energy
recovery or disposal.
o Collection, treatment or vehicle contracts coming to an end.

Outcomes

Contributes
to target #
4

All
partners

Who?

Work area 10: The way in which we collect waste is controlled by the Waste (amendment) Regulations 2011, which aims to promote high quality
recycling and move us towards becoming a recycling society. Abiding by the regulations will help ensure that we collect waste in a way that is
sustainable and provides best value. We will make sure that we are doing this by:

Action

#

8

Page 57

Offering commercial waste collection services that are
excellent quality and competitively priced

2

Making sure that businesses do not dispose of their
waste through household waste services

Using existing collection vehicles and waste
infrastructure to offer commercial waste collections
across the county where financially viable

1

3

Action

#

19

Commercial waste collection prices are set at least annually by
each partner at a level that is fair for customers and Surrey tax
payers
The size of the each partner’s customer base and level of customer
retention is assessed at least annually
Each partner’s customer base increases each year and customer
retention levels do not decrease
Collection crews are trained to identify and report commercial
waste abuse by 1 January 2016
Where household and commercial waste are collected together, an
accurate and robust method will be used to calculate the
proportions of each
Cost effective measures to avoid commercial waste abuse at CRCs
are implemented at all sites and monitored and recorded at least
quarterly

Each authority has been involved in an options appraisal exercise
for creating or expanding commercial waste collections by 1 April
2016
Offer a commercial waste service at community recycling centres
by 1 April 2016

Outcomes

All
partners

All
partners

1,4

All
partners

Who?

4

Contributes
to target #
4

Work area 11: Some of our WCAs already collect commercial waste, which they are allowed to charge for. This is a valuable income stream to
them which helps to offset other waste management costs. We will generate more income from commercial waste by:

8

Making sure that our CRC network is optimised to
provide a good service to residents whilst extracting
maximum value from materials

Diverting our residual waste from landfill

2

3

Improving our understanding of the total cost of
managing waste and recycling in Surrey

Scrutinising existing arrangements regularly to identify
opportunities for service improvement and cost
savings

1

4

Action

#

Page 58
20

A SWP cost assessment is undertaken by the end of each calendar
year
The cost capturing methodology is assessed annually prior to the
assessment

All residual waste is diverted from landfill by 2019/20

By 1 April 2016 options have been assessed for:
Charging for non-household waste
Reducing opening days and/or hours
Closing sites that are inefficient and can not be improved
Selling reusable materials either on or off site

All contract monitoring frameworks involve constant scrutiny of
performance and savings opportunities
Key performance indicators for all contracts/arrangements are
compared against peer authorities at least annually

Outcomes

4

3,4

4

Contributes
to target #
2,3,4

SWP
Manager

SCC

SCC

All
partners

Who?

Work area 12: It is important that we do not forget about our existing arrangements for collecting and managing our waste. We will continually
improve these by:

8

7

Plan for delivery

7.1

Responsibilities

All SWP authorities have agreed to work together to deliver the actions of this strategy
that are laid out above. The final column in each table says who is responsible for
delivering each action. Where a partner has already achieved an action, they are
responsible for helping other partners to do the same by providing advice and support.
Each partner will need to develop an operational plan which delivers the actions of the
strategy. Partners will not be asked to submit their plans, but instead will be evaluated
against the strategy’s actions and outcomes as part of the annual performance review.

8

Working on behalf of SWP, the SWP manager is responsible for encouraging partners to
deliver the strategy. They will monitor the performance of each partner closely and
identify any actions that are at risk of not being delivered. They will then provide the
necessary level of support to maximise the chances of successful delivery. Each partner
should respect the SWP manager’s position and offer them as much assistance as possible
as they undertake the role.
7.2

Monitoring and evaluation process

The strategy has been set up so that each action has measurable outcomes attached to it
which will help us to successfully monitor performance. The SWP manager will produce an
annual review which will assess performance against each action and report on progress
towards each target. This review will be in the form of a report that is presented to the
SWP officer and Members’ group meetings for discussion.
7.3

Revision process

This strategy’s duration is ten years so that it terminates at the same time as SCC’s waste
disposal contract. It will be revised at the half way point – in the year 2019/20, and at the
end – in 2024/25. However we recognise that both the strategy’s targets and actions can
quickly become outdated and need to be adjusted more regularly than once every five
years. We will update the targets four times during the strategy period (as part of each
revision and half way between each revision). The actions are quite specific, so we will
update these every year as part of the annual performance review. The revision process is
summarised in Table 2.
Table 2: Revision timetable – active years are shaded green

Year

Revision of targets

Revision of actions

Full strategy revision

2014/15
2015/16
2016/17
2017/18
2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25

Page 59

21

8

Glossary of terms

Anaerobic Digestion
Anaerobic Digestion systems use natural processes to break down food wastes in the
absence of oxygen to produce methane gas, which can be used as a fuel for the production
of electricity.
Bring site
A bring site or bring bank is a localised collection point for recyclables such as glass,
paper, cans, etc.

8

Bulky waste
Waste is considered ‘bulky’ if it weighs more than 25kg or any item that does not fit into
the householder’s bin; or if no container is provided, a cylindrical receptacle of 750mm in
diameter and 1m high.
Community Recycling Centres (CRCs)
Sites operated by SCC where residents within a specified area can dispose of their
household waste, in particularly bulky waste, free of charge.
Commercial waste
Commercial waste arises from premises used for trade, business, sport, recreation or
entertainment, but excluding household and industrial waste.
Community sector
Also known as the voluntary or third sector, it includes organisations that are not-forprofit and non-governmental that undertake a duty of social activity, usually charities and
non-charitable voluntary bodies.
Composting
The degradation of organic wastes in the presence of oxygen to produce a fertiliser or soil
conditioner. This can either be an enclosed process (in-vessel) or operated as an ‘open
windrow’ process.
Contamination rates
The amount of presented material that cannot be recycled as a proportion of the total
amount of material that can be recycled at a MRF or other reprocessor.
Contaminated recycling
Material found in the recycling waste stream that cannot be recycled and affects the
quality and value of the other material.
Dry recyclables
Materials such as paper, metals, plastics and glass that can be collected through kerbside
schemes or bring banks.
The Environment Agency (England and Wales)
The Environment Agency for England was formed by the Environment Act 1995 to regulate
emissions of and pollutants to air, land and water. The Agency’s main role in the

Page 60

22

management of waste is through its regulatory activities to protect the environment and
human health.
Green waste
Vegetation and plant waste from household gardens and public parks and gardens.
Hazardous waste
Defined in the Landfill Regulations as any waste defined in Article 1 (4) of Directive
91/689/EEC on hazardous waste.
Household waste

8

Waste from domestic properties including waste from CRCs, material collected for
recycling and composting, plus waste from educational establishments, nursing and
residential homes and hostels, caravan parks, self-catering accommodation, prisons,
places of worship, public meeting premises and street cleansing waste.
Kerbside collection
Any regular collection of recyclables from households and from commercial or industrial
premises. It excludes collection services requested on demand.
Landfill sites
Landfills are areas of land in which waste is deposited, which often consist of disused
quarries. In areas where there are limited, or no ready-made voids, the waste is deposited
above ground and the landscape is contoured. This is known as land raising.
Market testing
Researching the cost of providing a new service or service change in current market
conditions.
Material Reclamation Facility (MRF)
A place where mixed dry recycling is separated into its constituent parts – e.g. paper,
card, cans, glass - usually by a mixture of specialised machines and manual sorting, before
being sent elsewhere to be recycled into new products. Also sometimes known as a
Materials Recycling Facility or Materials Recovery Facility.
Municipal waste
This includes all waste under the control of local authorities or agents acting on their
behalf. It includes all household waste, street litter, waste delivered to council recycling
points, municipal parks and garden wastes, council office waste, civic amenity site waste,
and some commercial waste from shops and smaller trading estates where local authority
waste collection agreements are in place.
National Indicators
Introduced on 1 April 2008, National Indicators were the only set of indicators on which
central government performance managed local government. These were withdrawn in
2011, however local authorities are still obliged to report waste data and their
performance against each indicator is still calculated.

Page 61

23

Participation rates
The proportion of households that take part in a collection scheme at least once in a
defined period of time, usually over three collection opportunities.
Recycling
Recycling involves the reprocessing of waste material, either into the same product or a
different one. Many nonhazardous wastes such as paper, glass, cardboard, plastics and
scrap metals can be recycled.
Recovery (other recovery)

8

The 2013 waste management plan produced by the Department for Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs (Defra) says that ‘other recovery’ includes anaerobic digestion, incineration
with energy recovery, gasification and pyrolysis which produce energy (fuels, heat and
power) and materials from waste and some backfilling operations.
Reduction (prevention or minimisation)
Making less waste in the first place. Waste reduction can be accomplished through
reviewing the production processes so as to optimise utilisation of raw (and secondary)
materials and recirculation processes. This may lower disposal costs and the usage for raw
materials and energy. Also householders can reduce waste by reusing products and buying
goods with reduced packaging.
Rejects
Material that cannot be recycled or recovered by the reprocessor.
Reprocessor
A company that recycles or recovers waste.
Residual waste
Waste that has not been re-used, recycled or composted.
Re-use
The commercial sector can re-use products a number of times, such as re-usable
packaging. Householders can buy refillable containers, re-use plastic bags, or donate bulky
items such as furniture to re-use organisations. Re-use contributes to sustainable
development and can save raw materials, energy and transport costs.
Side waste
Additional waste presented outside the container for collection e.g. an extra bag of
rubbish left by your refuse bin.
Social value
A process whereby organisations meet their needs for goods, services, works and utilities
in a way that achieves value for money on a whole life basis in terms of generating
benefits to society and the economy, whilst minimising damage to the environment.
Sustainable development
Development which meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs. Sustainable development, as defined by UK

Page 62

24

Government [Defra. Securing the Future: delivering UK sustainable development strategy,
March 2005], is the integration of social, economic and environmental objectives.
Waste Hierarchy
The Waste Hierarchy, introduced by the EU Waste Framework Directive, is an abstract
framework that prioritises the options for waste management. It represents a sliding scale
starting with the most sustainable option (reduction) and ending with the least sustainable
option (disposal):
•

reduction;

•

re-use;

•

recovery (i.e. recycling, composting and energy recovery); and

•

disposal.

8

Page 63

25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64

[RESTRICTED]
Item
9

Environment and Transport Select Committee
22nd January 2015
Utilities Task Group Recommendations and South East Permit
Scheme (SEPS): Update Report

Purpose of the report: Policy Development and Review
The Select Committee is asked to review the further progress made on the
recommendations of the Task Group, and to also review the performance of
the South East Permit Scheme, to improve the co-ordination and quality of
work of utilities companies in Surrey.

Introduction:
1.

This report provides an update on the recommendations of the Task
Group established to improve the co-ordination and quality of work of
utilities companies in Surrey. Task Group membership was;
· Mrs Pat Frost (Chair)
· Mr Mike Bennison
· Mr Stephen Cooksey
· Mr Michael Sydney

2.

Whilst Surrey County Council’s Street Works team had made significant
progress in recent years to improve the Council’s ability to manage street
works and road works, some problems surrounding utility maintenance
works and reinstatement works remained.

3.

In order to alleviate these issues, the Environment and Transport Select
Committee convened a Task Group of Members to look at the subject in
depth and form a number of recommendations to assist the Council in
better co-ordinating works carried out by utilities companies on the
County’s highways. The final report from the Task Group is attached
here for reference as Appendix A

Page 1 of 11

Page 65

9

[RESTRICTED]

Review Structure and Consultation

9

4.

The Task Group met on seven occasions between September and
December 2012 and considered a number of different subjects, including
communication, co-ordination, reinstatements, areas with special
conditions and permit schemes

5.

As part of the evidence gathering process, the Task Group interviewed a
number of witnesses from utilities companies, along with Officers from
neighbouring Highway Authorities, and surveyed County Councillors,
Borough and District Reps and Parish Council Reps, as well as members
of the public

6.

Four main Recommendations (sub divided into 22 in total) from the Task
Group were considered by the Environment and Transport Select
Committee on 10 Jan 2013 and were approved by Cabinet on 5 Feb
2013. Key amongst these recommendations was to introduce a Permit
Scheme to better manage roadworks.

7.

Updates on progress against Task Group recommendations have been
presented to E&T Select Committee in January and June 2014, along
with an update on the South East Permit Scheme (SEPS) which
commenced in Surrey on 11 November 2013.

8.

Of the 22 recommendations made by the Task Group, 10 remained
outstanding and were reported upon in June 2014. Progress against
these recommendations is outlined below.

Progress update on recommendations still outstanding at June 2014
E&T Select Committee

9.

Recommendation 1a - Now completed. Clearer and easier to access
information on the Surrey County Council website has been achieved by
embedding data from the www.roadworks.org website. Access to this
interactive mapping on Surrey’s website now takes only three ‘clicks’, as
opposed to the previous 10, and the data is accurate and clearer. Further
improvements to the data with diversion routes shown and enhanced
description of works activities remain ongoing as part of the ‘day-to-day
development of the information by the Street works team.
Link to site: http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/roadmaintenance-and-cleaning/roadworks-in-my-area

10. Recommendation 1f: - Now completed. Automatic, bespoke 'areas of
interest' alerts can now be sent directly to Members utilising functionality
within the Roadworks.org website. A member trial of this system is
commencing with Cllrs; Beckett, Cooksey and Wilson, prior to any wider
roll out.

Page 2 of 11

Page 66

[RESTRICTED]

11. Recommendation 2a: That Surrey County Council, in conjunction with
South East 7 (SE7) members and the Highways Authorities and Utilities
Committee, (HAUC) lobby company regulators and Department for
Transport (DfT) on the following areas;
12. i) That utility company street works performance be taken into account
when setting prices. Recommendation ongoing. Following Surrey’s
initial discussions with other SE7 members and Senior Officers from
HAUC, it is evident that any progression of this recommendation requires
DfT focus and input in order to influence industry regulators. DfT’s limited
resources in this area are currently solely focussed on production of new
‘April 2015’ Permit Regulations and associated Codes of Practise.
Current Vice Chair of HAUC England – David Latham (Kent CC) also
advises that the governance structure between the newly formed HAUC
England and reformed HAUC UK is still under development. Until such
time as this governance structure is agreed and embedded, HAUC UK is
unlikely to be able to encourage DfT to prioritise engagement with
regulators.
13. ii) That Street Authorities be granted greater flexibility in the allocation
and use of inspections at various stages of street works.
Recommendation ongoing – however given the substantial increase
in total inspections undertaken since commencement of the South
East Permit Scheme, Officers request Select Committee to consider
whether this recommendation is still required. As updated
previously, this would require a change to secondary legislation.
Changes to the Code of Practise for Inspections have been considered
previously by DfT and HAUC but, without any industry agreement
reached and with the current National Government’s ‘Red Tape
Challenge’ these changes now appear to have been postponed
indefinitely. A HAUC UK advice note has been circulated to better clarify
issues with interpretation of current secondary legislation. The current
issues outlined above regards DfT resource and focus, and current
HAUC structure also apply here. A change in National Government could
possibly mean a review of current government thinking. Members should
also note that Surrey can elect to inspect 100% of all works at all stages
if we so wished, but we would need to employ a substantially increased
number of Officers to do so.
14. iv) That a timeline for the repair of defective works be set with penalties
to be applied in cases of non compliance. Recommendation ongoing.
Whilst the Code of Practise sets out the process for reporting of and
responding to defective reinstatements, a ‘penalty’ for late completion
would require re-writing of both primary and secondary NRSWA
legislation which is highly unlikely given the current industry and political
climate. (see above) South East HAUC has however produced a further
guidance note for HAUC England consideration to seek agreement on
timeline for repairs.

Page 3 of 11

Page 67

9

[RESTRICTED]

9

15. Recommendation 2b: That the award of future contracts for works on the
County highway takes into account the statistical street works
performance of the companies concerned. Recommendation ongoing.
This has been discussed with colleagues in Procurement. At present
there is still no robust national performance measure of such areas,
making contract award on this ‘quality’ basis problematic. A voluntary
performance ‘dashboard’ tool is being developed by Geoplace, taking
data from Highway Authorities’ street works registers, and when this
dashboard is fully utilised by all Authorities – and the data sufficiently
analysed, it may be possible for this recommendation to be further
progressed. Until such time as this data is nationally available and
validated, further consideration of this recommendation is not possible.
Currently 50% of Highway Authorities are now voluntarily supplying this
data.
16. Recommendation 2d: That the role of Boroughs, Districts, Parish and
Town Councils and other known community organisations in the
inspection and reporting of reinstatements be explored by Officers. Trial
with Woking ongoing. A trial in Woking Borough remains ongoing, with
an agreed proforma and reporting process in use. Thus far the trial is
inconclusive regards the value of reporting/receiving time for the
respective partners, versus the benefits. Officers from Surrey and
Woking agreed in December 2014 to continue this trial for a further three
months, before any decision is taken on how best to roll this out further
across Surrey, whilst accommodating any concerns over an
unmanageable volume of reports, over a wider scale.
17. General Recommendation 3: That proposal to introduce a ‘Common’
Permitting scheme with East Sussex County Council, to coordinate all
works on the Surrey Council Highway, be endorsed. Completed
November 2013 – see latter section of this report.
18. iii) That the statutory undertakers engage in greater communication with
Local members when carrying out works in their area. Now completed.
Surrey’s Street works team have produced Internal policy documents for
‘Major Works’ and ‘Comms and Engagement’ (Appendices B & C) in
order to ensure Members receive communications regards works likely
to cause disruption in their areas. Kier (Surrey’s primary Highways
Contractor) work to their “Customer Engagement at Street works and
Roadworks – A Code of practice” (Appendix D) which includes reference
to engagement with Local Members.
19. Recommendation 4c: That the Surrey County Council Gazetteer be
updated to include all details relating to areas with special conditions /
surfaces. Recommendation ongoing. This recommendation remains in
the work stream of Officers in the Highways information team, however
the dataset itself holding such information is first being collated,
developed, and reviewed as part of the development of the new
‘YOTTA’ asset management database, before any transfer into the
National Street Gazetteer is scheduled. This work should link with a
Page 4 of 11

Page 68

[RESTRICTED]

review of Surrey’s Gazetteer itself. Officers are currently exploring
resource options – both internal and consultant, to undertake this review.

20. Recommendation 4f : That the potential for the collation of a limited
central store of specialist surfacing materials by Surrey County Council
be explored, containing materials that can be ordered on behalf of utility
companies on a cost basis, as required, to enable swifter and more
appropriate reinstatements in Conservation Areas. Officers have fully
explored the current potential for creation of such a store. No
suitable location has been identified to hold such a store, nor were any
finances identified to set up and run such an operation and as such the
service does not believe this is currently financially viable. However
within Phase Two of Surrey’s ‘E&I Future’ review (2015), this
recommendation remains under consideration as part of that wider
review of services/structure. It should be noted that the use of
appropriate conditions within permit application approvals has given
Surrey greater control over the first time permanent reinstatement of
specialist materials and the additional staff resource now available for
onsite inspections has ensured a swifter response to any concerns over
reinstatement in conservation areas. Management of the Street works
function are not aware of any specific concerns over reinstatement in
conservation areas since the commencement of the SEPS.
South East Permit Scheme (SEPS) Update:

21. Following the required formal consultation period, both Surrey and East
Sussex Councils submitted an application to the DfT in March 2013 to
operate the common ‘South East Permit Scheme’ (SEPS) to manage
activities on the highway across their networks. Following the required
DfT sign off process, and the making of the Statutory Instrument, SEPS
went live in both authorities on Monday 11th November 2013.
22. Bracknell Forest Council has also subsequently commenced operation of
SEPS in November 2014, and Slough, West Berks and Wokingham
Councils have all received DfT approval to commence SEPS operation
before April 2015 (when Permit Regulations change), demonstrating that
the SEPS is seen to provide the required tools to better manage Utility
Companies’ works.

23. Thus far, the additional powers given by the scheme have already made
a demonstrable difference to Surrey’s ability to manage works on the
highway. Surrey and East Sussex Officers, along with representatives
from the other four Authorities joining the scheme, and selected Utility
Company ‘Sector’ Representatives have set up a working group to
review the success of the scheme and consider refinements to approach
and process, where permissible.
24. Permits granted for Utility Companies on major routes or on ‘traffic
sensitive’ roads incur a fee and these fees are used to offset the
Page 5 of 11

Page 69

9

[RESTRICTED]

operation of the scheme. Whilst these fees cannot be used as an income
generator they can ensure that the scheme is cost neutral for Surrey.
Thus far income derived from permit fees is in line with the levels
estimated when the scheme was designed and so the forecast is that the
scheme will be cost neutral in year 1. Fees can be reviewed annually.
Permits granted for Surrey’s own works follow the same process to grant
permits, but no fee is involved.

9

25. Under the new April 2015 Permit Regulations, the DfT are considering
the introduction of a set of nationally agreed permit conditions. This
would require SEPS to adapt the conditions used with the scheme to this
new national set. Surrey Officers are working closely with other current
and proposed future members of SEPS to ensure that any changes
introduced by the DfT are not to the detriment of the scheme’s operation.
26. From scheme commencement on 11 November 2013 to the end of
November 2014, Surrey had granted a total of 67,172 permits to all
works promoters (including Surrey’s own works promoters). Many of
these with ‘conditions’ placed upon the granting of the permit to ensure
works are executed in a way acceptable to Surrey. Table 2 below shows
the month by month breakdown of granted permits.
27. Table 2: Permits granted – by month.

6694 6607

7000

5668

6000

Granted Permits

6249
5475

4905

5005

4819 4721 4731

5000

4532
3902

3864

4000
3000
2000
1000
0

28. ‘Variations’ can be given to permits to allow an early start, an extension
of the works duration or a change of methodology. 12,259 Variations
have been granted to date. Table 3 below shows the month on month
variations granted.

Page 6 of 11

Page 70

[RESTRICTED]

29. Table 3: Variations by month.

Total Variations Granted
1143

1200
1071

883

917

1051 1051
973

969

1000

1105

1068

889

9
800
668
600
471
400

200

0

30. Surrey can refuse permits if the content/proposals are not acceptable.
Most refused permits are of course resubmitted and subsequently
granted with the correct amendments made or conditions applied. From
April 2014 changes to the software available to permit scheme operators
meant that ‘Permit Modification Requests’ (PMRs) could be used for
minor changes as opposed to a refusal. Table 4 shows numbers of
refusals by month, with the April figure showing the conversation to use
of PMRs as well as refusals.

Page 7 of 11

Page 71

[RESTRICTED]

31. Table 4: Permit rejections and Modification requests by month
1000

703 640
592

900

554 501 530

800

PMR's

509

700

295

600
500
400
300

627 601 578 606 581

200

322 263
288 241 237 251
213 258

100

Dec-14

Nov-14

Oct-14

Sep-14

Aug-14

Jul-14

Jun-14

May-14

Apr-14

Mar-14

Feb-14

Jan-14

Dec-13

0
Nov-13

9

Refusals

32. Issuing of Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) against Utility Companies
commenced in February 2014. Thus far xxx FPNs have been given for
either breaching the conditions placed upon a permit or for failure to
supply the correct information required to a prescribed timeline. Each
FPN offers the opportunity for the Utility Company to discharge their
liability for the offence committed. Payment is £120 per FPN, or £80 if
the FPN is paid within a 29 day ‘discount’ period. Should a Utility
Company elect to not accept and pay an FPN, Surrey can consider
prosecuting such offences. Table 5 shows the number of FPNs given
each month.
33. Table 5: FPNs given, by month.
Month
Feb '14
Mar '14
Apr '14
May '14
Jun '14
Jul '14
Aug '14
Sep '14
Oct '14
Nov '14
Grand Total

Count of FPNs
28
279
96
84
96
95
114
163
128
113
1196

Sum of FPNS
£
3,120.00
£
24,300.00
£
8,120.00
£
6,720.00
£
7,680.00
£
7,600.00
£
9,560.00
£
13,040.00
£
10,240.00
£
9,700.00
£ 100,080.00

Additional Street Works Officers employed to support the Permit
Scheme Operation, and new inspection ‘types’ required by the operation
Page 8 of 11

Page 72

[RESTRICTED]

of the scheme have allowed for a greater number of overall inspection of
works to be undertaken. Using overall figures in the year prior to the
introduction of SEPS total inspections numbered 13,326 against 21,041
for the first year post SEPS introduction. This constitutes an additional
7,926 inspections per annum, a 59% increase in works inspections.
34. Table 6 below shows the number of inspections undertaken - by works
promoter.

35. Table 6: Site inspections Nov 13 – Nov ’14 by works promoter.
Inspection Type
Abovenet Communications UK Ltd
AFFINITY WATER - C
BT
ES Pipelines Ltd
Fulcrum Pipelines Limited
GTC
LONDON TRANSPORT
National Grid Gas Plc
NETWORK RAIL -PROMOTERS NATIONAL
O2 (UK) Limited
Romec
South East Water
SOUTHERN ELECTRIC
SOUTHERN GAS NETWORKS
Southern Water
SSE DATACOM
SURREY COUNTY COUNCIL
SUTTON AND EAST SURREY WATER
Thames Water Utilities Ltd
T-Mobile (UK) Limited
UK POWER NETWORKS SOUTH EASTERN
VIRGIN MEDIA
Vodafone
Grand Total

Total Amount of Inspections Per Promoter
4
1673
3319
4
19
25
1
482
35
1
2
1100
521
3436
8
5
883
2019
2741
7
1903
2801
52
21,041

36. Following a successful Audit review of the Streetworks function in 2013,
Surrey’s Internal Audit plan for 2014/15 includes an audit of the permit
scheme process in the fourth quarter of the year.

Page 9 of 11

Page 73

9

[RESTRICTED]

Conclusions:
37. Further recommendations of the Task Group have been completed since
the last report to E&T Select Committee or are continuing to be
addressed by Officers, particularly embedding the new processes around
the South East Permit Scheme. Officers in the Street works team
continue to monitor the outcome of these recommendations and also
identify refinements to the recommendations.
38. The SEPS has been operating successfully since 11 November 2013
and has given the Street works team a far greater degree of control over
both works co-ordination and methodology/execution of works.

9

Recommendations:
39. That members; note this report and comment on the progress made to
date and recognise the issues around progressing some outstanding
recommendations due to the ongoing changes in the HAUC structure
and DfT resource levels/focus, and others due to current financial
viability.
40. That members support the removal of original recommendation 2 a.) ii),
given the increased number of inspections now being undertaken.
41. That members support the ongoing development of the SEPS.

Next steps:
Surrey Officers continue to progress outstanding recommendations and
embed and develop permit scheme processes.
The Operation of the Permit Scheme is reported upon as part of Surrey’s
Internal Audit Plan. (Programmed for quarter 4 of 2014/15)
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contacts:
Matthew Jezzard, Traffic and Street works Manager, Operations Group.
Contact details:

Tel: 01483 517453
Email: matthew.jezzard@surreycc.gov.uk

Huma Younis, Scrutiny Officer, Democratic Services.
Contact Details:

Page 10 of 11

Tel: 0208 213 2725
Email: huma.younis@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 74

[RESTRICTED]

Sources/background papers:
Task Group Report: Improving the Co-ordination and Quality of Work of
Utilities Companies in Surrey.
Environment & Transport Select Committee - 10 January 2013
Utilities Task Group: Update Report.
Environment and Transport Select Committee – 23 January 2014
Utilities Task Group: Update Report
Environment and Transport Select Committee – 12 June 2014

9

Page 11 of 11

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

[RESTRICTED]
Item
8

Environment & Transport Select Committee
10 January 2013
Task Group Report: Improving the Co-ordination and Quality
of Work of Utilities Companies in Surrey
Purpose of the report: Policy Development and Review
The Select Committee is asked to endorse the recommendations of the Task
Group, which seek to improve the co-ordination and quality of work of utilities
companies in Surrey.

Introduction:
1. This report sets out the recommendations of the Task Group established
to improve the co-ordination and quality of work of utilities companies in
Surrey.
2. The Task Group was instigated to improve the standard of, and level of
disruption caused by, utility company street works in Surrey. From the
outset the Task Group’s key objectives were:
i) To establish how the Council can work more effectively with utilities
companies to better communicate and co-ordinate street works.
ii) To improve the standard and quality of work carried out by utilities
companies.
3. The review also considered the viability of the introduction of a permit
scheme to co-ordinate all works on Surrey County Council’s highway.
4. The Task Group’s Membership was as follows: Mrs Pat Frost (Chairman),
Mr Mike Bennison, Mr Stephen Cooksey and Mr Michael Sydney.
Background:
5. Under the provisions of the New Roads and Street Works Act 1991
(NRSWA) and Traffic Management Act 2004 (TMA), the County Council
has the following duty to manage its road network:

Page 45
77

9

[RESTRICTED]

“It is the duty of a local traffic authority to manage their road network
with a view to achieving as far as is reasonably practicable the
expeditious movement of traffic on the authority’s road network”.
6. Similarly, the NRSWA makes utilities companies (“works promoters”)
wholly responsible for the management of their street works. They have
the right to place, inspect, maintain, adjust, repair, alter, change position
or remove apparatus in highways maintainable at the public expense.
7. The NRSWA also gives the County Council the duty to use its “best
endeavours” to co-ordinate the execution of works of all kinds in the
streets for which it is responsible. Specifically, it is required to consider
the interests of safety, minimise inconvenience to persons using the street
and protect the structure of the street and the integrity of apparatus on it.

9
8. Therefore, the County Council has an interest and responsibility in
overseeing the work carried out by utilities companies on Surrey’s
highways and in challenging these companies to improve the quality of
their work.
9. Surrey County Council’s Street Works team has made significant
progress in recent years to improve the Council’s controls in this regard.
However, problems surrounding utility maintenance works and
reinstatement works remain. Inspecting and rectifying problematic or
substandard reinstatement works by utilities companies has a significant
revenue cost implication for the Council and issues with traffic disruption
and congestion can result from problematic road works. Local
Government Association figures estimate that this costs the taxpayer
approximately £218 million per year1. Concerns have also been raised by
Members and residents that there is a widespread perception the
maintenance works of utilities companies are conducted without sufficient
prior consultation and arrangement with the Council.
10. In order to alleviate these issues, the Environment and Transport Select
Committee convened a Task Group of Members to look at the subject in
depth and form a number of recommendations to assist the Council in
better co-ordinating works carried out by utilities companies on the
County’s highways.
Structure of the Review:
11. The Task Group met on seven occasions between September and
December 2012 and considered a number of different subjects, including
communication, co-ordination, reinstatements, areas with special
conditions and permit schemes. These matters are all addressed within
this report.
12. In order to fully gauge Member perception of the issues surrounding street
works carried out by utilities companies in Surrey, a survey was sent to
County Councillors, Borough & District representatives and Parish Council
representatives. These responses were used to inform the review and a
1

LGA media release, 12 December 2012.

Page 46
78

[RESTRICTED]

summary is contained within this report in paragraphs 21 to 25. A full
analysis is attached at annexe C.
13. A press release was issued at the start of the review which publicised the
work of the Task Group. This was featured in local papers, local radio
stations and on Council websites. Members of the public were
encouraged to submit their views to a dedicated street works inbox and
postal address to inform the review. The Task Group also received two
letters of support from senior Surrey MPs. A full analysis of these
responses is included in annexe C.
14. As part of the evidence gathering process, the Task Group interviewed a
number of witnesses from six utilities companies. Members and officers
felt that their evidence would be of significant importance to help the
Council understand the challenges the companies themselves faced
when carrying out street works in Surrey.
15. The Chairman of the Task Group was keen to stress that this review was
not to be a “utility knocking exercise” but rather, an opportunity for the
Council and utilities companies to work co-operatively to inform a series of
recommendations that would assist both parties in delivering more
effective and better co-ordinated street works to the benefit of Surrey’s
residents.
16. The Task Group also interviewed street works officers from Kent and
Hampshire County Councils, who provided evidence of their experiences
with different street work management systems.
17. A full list of witnesses interviewed by the Task Group is attached at
annexe B.
Consultation:
18. As the disruption caused by utilities companies’ street works impacts
significantly upon residents, the Task Group felt it would be important to
consider the views of members of the public in the context of this review.
Key to the formation of successful recommendations would be proposals
that prioritised the needs of residents.
19. A survey was also sent to Surrey Councillors. Local Members are a
valuable source of knowledge in this regard as they are well-placed to
present the concerns of their residents.
20. The information gathered from both the survey and public comments
helped to direct and shape the work of the Task Group in a manner that
aimed to put the views of the public at the forefront of any
recommendations. A full analysis of these responses is attached in
annexe C, though a summary of key themes and findings is included
below.

Page 47
79

9

[RESTRICTED]

Surrey Councillors:
21. The majority of local authority representatives surveyed felt that
communications from utilities companies in advance of street works taking
place and during the works were poor. Respondents called for better local
targeting of information about planned street works, including giving direct
notice to local households and businesses, and putting notices in local
papers. Greater detail, including contact details and accurate timescales
for work were requested. There was also strong support for using
Councillors, and in particular Parish Councils, as a resource in
communicating street works carried out by utilities companies in Surrey.

9

22. While a significant number of Councillors rated the management of street
works, including tidiness and traffic management as poor, this view was
less strongly emphasised at the local level. The need for traffic
management to be responsive to different traffic flows at different times of
day was also highlighted.
23. The quality of reinstatements was broadly regarded as poor. This attitude
was less strongly stated at the local level, although it is worth noting that
the majority of Parish and Borough/District respondents did not rate
reinstatements as good. Councillors highlighted the deterioration of some
reinstatements over time and suggested a need for better checks and
enforcement.
24. Common issues raised by residents in the form of complaints included the
quality of reinstatements, inadequate communication, the time taken for
works to complete and the lack of visible progress by contractors.
25. Further comments from local authority representatives highlighted the
need to improve co-ordination of works and proposals regarding permit
and penalty schemes. Surrey MP respondents also backed the use of
permit or penalty schemes to incentivise utility companies to carry out
their works quickly and with minimal disruption.
Public Responses:
26. The majority of responses from the public commented on a lack of postworks inspection. Many felt that interim reinstatements were often
inadequate and that this led to an increase in road maintenance work by
the Council. The view was also expressed that sites were often left untidy,
or equipment left behind after works had been completed. Several
respondents indicated that they were in favour of closer regulation of
utility company repairs by the Council.
27. Other concerns raised by the public included:
• The number of different works being carried out in the same area within
a short period;
• The increase in commuting time as a result of street works;
• Works being left unattended for significant amounts of time; and
• A lack of clear information about who was responsible for work sites.

Page 48
80

[RESTRICTED]

28. Public responses to the consultation frequently expressed that they were
in favour of a review.
29. Overall, a number of central themes emerged with regards to responses
from Surrey Councillors and the public. This included improvements to
communication, co-ordination and the quality of reinstatements. As a
result, these key areas were all subject to significant consideration by the
Task Group.
Communication:
30. Core to any recommendations that seek to improve the quality of work of
utilities companies is communication. This is important because it is a
valuable resource in the management of public perception and
expectation. If for example, residents are made aware of planned works in
advance, they have time to consider how the impact on their daily
activities can be minimised, such as by planning different routes to work.
31. Communication is also important from an “internal” perspective. To
ensure that street works are co-ordinated effectively, both the County
Council and utilities companies must engage in active dialogue so that
one knows what the other is doing. Both parties have statutory and
discretionary responsibilities in this regard; however the Task Group was
of the view that there is scope for improvement.
Statutory and Discretionary Responsibilities:
32. The effective co-ordination of street works is essential to guarantee
safety, minimise disruption and protect the structure of the street. The
NRSWA gives Street Authorities the duty to co-ordinate works and grants
them powers to achieve this, such as the power to give directions as to
the timing of street works, the power to give directions as to the placing of
apparatus and the duty of statutory undertakers to co-operate with the
Street Authority.
33. The NRSWA also states that wherever “reasonably practicable”, Street
Authorities should aim to avoid traffic disruption, works on recently
surfaced or reconstructed streets and planned works within a short period
of earlier works. In cases where works are likely to cause significant traffic
disruption, the Council is able to make a request for works to take place
during off-peak hours, weekends and for 24 hour periods.
34. Works sponsors have the statutory responsibility to display information
boards at every site, giving the name of the organisation carrying out the
works and a contact telephone number which can be used in cases of
emergencies. Other details, such as why the work is taking place and how
long the works are likely to go on for, are discretionary.
35. Utilities companies interviewed by the Task Group also outlined the
discretionary efforts they make to minimise the disruption caused by
street works. This included letter drops, “drop in centres” on local high
streets, meetings with Surrey’s Street Works Team and use of social
media to inform residents of upcoming works. Similarly, Surrey’s Street

Page 49
81

9

[RESTRICTED]

Works Team also carries out discretionary communications in the form of
Member information bulletins, information releases and notices on the
Council’s website. The Task Group welcomed these approaches and felt
that such practice should be encouraged wherever possible.
Improving Communication to Residents:
36. Although the Task Group noted that utilities companies had processes in
place for giving residents prior warning of upcoming street works, the
survey results analysed in annexe C and comments received from
members of the public strongly suggested that communication in relation
to street works was poor.

9

37. A key area for improvement identified by the Task Group was the Surrey
County Council website. At present there are information pages in relation
to general street works, but none that specifically detail utilities
companies’ works in Surrey. There is also no “quick link” heading on the
Council’s “report it online” page with regards to utility works. The
introduction of both of these resources would give residents a single, easy
to access source of information detailing any upcoming works in their
area. This would reduce the need for residents to contact the Council
directly for information relating to street works and help keep them better
informed.
38. The Task Group also felt that if the Council were to improve its
communication procedures in relation to street works, it would be prudent
to take advantage of social media. As noted in paragraph 35, utilities
companies are already doing this and using applications such as
Facebook and Twitter to update residents as to the progress of works
would be a cost effective and efficient way of keeping residents informed.
39. A further issue frequently raised by Councillors with regards to
communication was that residents often complained that reports
submitted to the Council of poor quality street works went
unacknowledged. Surrey County Council has a clear Customer Promise
that requires customer queries to be acknowledged and responded to
within a reasonable timescale, and the Task Group felt that in the context
of street works reporting, this commitment should be adhered to wherever
possible.
Improving Internal Communication:
40. To assist in the running of its street works functions, the Council’s Street
Works Team uses Symology, a system that holds the register of all street
works in Surrey. It also includes a mapping system to assist in the coordination of works. This system has the potential to show conflicts where
works with overlapping dates occur in the same street and within the
vicinity of other works.
41. Symology is a key resource that gives officers general information about
street works in Surrey. However, the Task Group noted a key weakness
in the system in that it is not currently linked to the Surrey County Council
Contact Centre. This is usually the first point of contact for members of

Page 50
82

[RESTRICTED]

the public who have queries in relation to street works. Because staff at
the Contact Centre do not have direct access to the information contained
within Symology, most public queries in relation to street works either
have to be passed on to the highways department or responded to at a
later date. To make this process more efficient and customer focused, the
Task Group was of the view that Symology should be linked to the
Contact Centre, subject to the cost of purchasing the required additional
user licenses.
42. A further resource used by the County Council is Elgin, a web-based
information service which publishes current and planned street works and
is available to view by the public. To enable Councillors to better
communicate upcoming works to residents, it is also suggested that
automatic “areas of interest” alerts be set-up on Elgin, that inform
Members of significant works in their area.
43. As stated in paragraph 36, improvements to communication around street
works is of key concern to both residents and Councillors. Therefore, the
Task Group proposed that a clear and accessible street works
communications policy be developed by the County Council, incorporating
the suggestions above.
Reporting and Monitoring of Reinstatements:
44. Key to the management of street works is the monitoring of
reinstatements. As part of its work the Task Group felt that it would be
essential to analyse the powers that the County Council has with regards
to incentivising utilities companies to carry out high-quality road repairs
upon the completion of works.
45. As illustrated by results from the Task Group’s survey, and the first-hand
experience of Surrey Councillors, a key concern of both Members and
residents is that reinstatements carried out by utilities companies are of a
poor standard and often require revisiting for repair and remedial works,
causing further disruption to those who use the highway. The Task Group
was therefore keen to consider this issue fully to ensure that any
recommendations aimed at improving the situation would have a clear
customer focus.
Setting the Scene - Current Legal Powers and Obligations:
46. Section 72 of the NRSWA empowers the County Council, as the Street
Authority, to carry out investigatory works to check whether the company
responsible (“statutory undertaker”) has complied with the duties placed
on it in respect of reinstatement of the street.
47. Section 75 of the NRSWA requires the statutory undertaker to pay the
Street Authority a prescribed fee in respect of each inspection of works
carried out by the authority. A large proportion of these inspections
consist of a random sample at specified stages of works. The number of
sample inspections undertaken per utility company is based on 30% of
the average number of works carried out over the preceding three years.

Page 51
83

9

[RESTRICTED]

48. The determining criteria for defects are dependent upon the type of
inspection undertaken. If it concerns the signing, lighting and guarding at
a site then the Department for Transport (DfT) document Safety at Street
Works and Road Works specifies that layout, traffic management, signage
and protective equipment must be considered. If it concerns the
reinstatement at a site the DfT document Specification for Reinstatement
Openings in the Highway (SRoH) specifies that type of material, depth of
material, compaction requirements, surface profile and verge
reinstatement requirements are the key measurables.

9

49. The NRSWA states that a fee of £50 to recover costs can be charged to
utility companies for all sample inspections undertaken by a Street
Authority. If an inspection is undertaken following a third party report and
a defect found, a fee of £68 may be charged to the Works Promoter. If
defective reinstatements are identified during any inspection, a £47.50 fee
is raised to cover officer time for each officer visit made to the site to
check the defect has been rectified. Timescales for such inspections are
laid out in the Code of Practice for Inspections 2002 (CoP).
50. The Street Authority also has power under section 72(1) of the NRSWA to
carry out investigatory works such as core sampling, measurement of
texture depth and material sampling. If these works confirm a defect then
a charge of £122.75 may be imposed on the Works Promoter.
51. Where inspections show that a statutory undertaker is consistently
underperforming, the Street Authority is able to issue an Improvement
Notice, which requires the undertaker to improve the quality of its works
and records the Authority’s dissatisfaction with the undertaker’s
performance.
Incentivising High Quality Reinstatements:
52. The Task Group felt that the current fees charged to Works Promoters for
defects found upon inspection were too low and did not incentivise utilities
companies enough to carry out high quality reinstatements. Members held
the view that in particular, the £50 fee charged for sample inspections was
barely sufficient to cover the cost of the Council carrying out the
inspection in the first place.
53. However, it was noted that an increase to this fee would require legislative
changes which the current political climate may not support, and that the
fee had only recently been raised from £25 in 2009. The Task Group
therefore felt that a request for another increase so soon after this would
be unlikely to succeed.
More Effective Reporting:
54. Although the NRSWA grants the County Council the right to inspect utility
company street works, the Task Group felt that the application of this
power was inflexible. The 30% sample inspection figure often had to be
split on a 10/10/10 basis between inspections during the works,
immediately upon completion of works and at the end of the period when
the utility company’s guarantee of the works expires (usually two years).

Page 52
84

[RESTRICTED]

This does not allow a targeted approach that would provide more effective
reporting and monitoring. Specifically, if it was known that a utility
company frequently left a street work site in poor condition upon the
completion of works, the NRSWA wouldn’t allow the Street Authority to
apply the majority of its 30% inspections at the completion phase in order
to target its resources at what it regarded to be the key issue. The Task
Group was therefore of the view that provision should be made for a more
flexible application of inspections.
55. It was also felt that utilities companies were too reliant upon the Street
Authority to inform them of defects. At present there is no requirement for
these companies to carry out inspections of their own works. It is
frequently the case that a defect will not be noticed and dealt with by a
utility company until the Street Works Team reports it to them. To promote
greater accountability and responsibility for their actions, the Task Group
felt that utilities companies should be encouraged to carry-out in-house
inspections of their own works.
56. The Task Group was also of the view that the quality of reinstatements
could be improved through the setting of strict timescales for the repair of
works deemed to be defective following inspection. At present works
sponsors are only required to repair defects within a “reasonable”
timescale. This is open to interpretation and again, does not provide
proper incentive for utilities companies to carry out repairs at the earliest
opportunity.
Encouraging Change through a Joined-up Approach:
57. The above issues are not unique to Surrey and are also likely to impact
upon other local authorities. In order to bring about change the Task
Group felt that rather than being “a single voice”, the County Council
should lobby utility company regulators with the support of others. This
would ideally be done via the South East Seven (SE7) initiative and the
Highway Authorities and Utilities Committee (HAUC). The former would
be an effective driver for change as the Council already has an
established relationship with the SE7. The initiative is also becoming well
established through its work on other projects and would therefore be a
high profile body whose views would very much be listened to. HAUC
would also be an effective body to work with as it has been lobbying
government and regulators for a number of years to bring about
improvements to utility company works on the highway.
58. A key goal which lobbying via the SE7 and HAUC could achieve would be
consideration of utilities companies’ street works performance when
regulators set prices. As highlighted in paragraph 52, current inspection
fees do not adequately encourage utilities companies to consistently
implement high quality reinstatements. However, if the regulators took
inspection results into account when they set prices, this would be highly
likely to financially incentivise utilities companies to improve their
performance.
59. The Task Group was also of the opinion that a similar concept could be
pursued at a more ‘local’ level in Surrey. Specifically, that the award of

Page 53
85

9

[RESTRICTED]

future contracts for works on the County’s highways takes utilities
companies’ performance into account. If for example, a company
statistically proven to have experienced high rates of reinstatement
inspection failure were to bid for a contract, the assessment of their bid
would seriously consider their poor track record in this regard. Again, this
would financially incentivise utilities companies to carry out high quality
street works, as poor performance would result in them potentially losing
future contracts.

9

60. The collation of data that would inform these decisions would also be of
importance, and the Task Group was informed of current efforts by the
Council’s Street Works Team to embrace smarter working methods,
including the use of handheld technology. This allows officers to report
issues on site and helps to make the monitoring of street works sites more
efficient. On this basis the Task Group supported the Street Works
Team’s efforts to employ smarter working practices.
The Local Perspective:
61. As reflected in the results of the Task Group’s Councillor survey, a
positive rate of response was received from representatives of local
community organisations, including Parish and Town Councils. This level
of interest was borne out of the fact that poor quality reinstatements have
a significant impact on towns and villages.
62. The Task Group was made aware of a willingness on the part of Districts
and Boroughs, Parish and Town Councils, and known community
organisations, to assist in the inspection and reporting of reinstatements.
The Task Group was therefore of the view that these groups could be
utilised as a valuable resource in this regard. Because they are at the
“grass roots” level and represent those who experience the problems
associated with poor quality reinstatements first hand, they will be
motivated to report defects as soon as they arise and will have the local
knowledge to monitor key areas.
63. By having these additional “eyes and ears” on the ground to report
reinstatement defects, there is potential for the Street Authority’s time and
manpower to be redistributed elsewhere for additional support on other
priorities. It is important to note however, that these groups would very
much be used as an additional third party reporting resource as opposed
to a replacement for Street Authority inspections.
64. For such a system to work successfully the County Council would need to
ensure that there are adequate resources available at the local level.
Therefore, the Task Group proposed that officers further explore the
viability of implementing a process whereby Boroughs and Districts,
Parish and Town Councils, and known local community organisations,
can report and monitor the quality of reinstatements in their local areas to
the Street Authority.

Page 54
86

[RESTRICTED]

Viability of a Permit Scheme:
65. In February 2013 Surrey County Council’s Cabinet will decide whether
Surrey adopts a permit scheme in conjunction with East Sussex County
Council to apply to all works on the Council’s highway. This scheme is
relevant to the work of the Task Group and as a result, the Group was
asked to consider its merits and shortcomings.
Overview:
66. Part 3 of the TMA includes provision for Street Authorities to apply to the
DfT to become a Permitting Authority. This would enable the Authority to
operate a permitting system for the management of its street works.
Under such a system, all works promoters, including Surrey Highways,
would be required to apply for a permit to carry out works on the highway,
specifying a particular timescale in which these works are to be
completed. The cost of a permit would depend on where and when the
works are due to be carried out. For example, a permit for works on a
main road during peak hours would come at a greater charge than a
permit for works on a B road outside of peak hours. These charges could
be used to cover the cost of operation of the scheme but could not be
profit making.
67. Surrey currently operates a noticing system whereby works promoters
advise the Street Authority of their intention to carry out works. These
notices are divided in to four basic types:
• Immediate notices - for emergency works. Notice is required within two
hours of work commencing;
• Major works - for works taking place over a period in excess of 11
days. Three months notice is required;
• Standard works – for works taking place for a period between four and
ten days. Ten days notice is required; and
• Minor works – for works taking place for a period of up to three days.
Three days notice is required.
The View of Witnesses:
68. To help establish the advantages and disadvantages of permit schemes,
the Task Group interviewed Street Works officers from Kent and
Hampshire County Councils, who operated a permit scheme and noticing
system respectively.
69. The Task Group was informed that Kent had experienced a number of
benefits in the management of its street works following the
implementation of a permit scheme. This included better control and
knowledge of activity and performance on the highway, excellent data to
monitor performance, spot trends and take early remedial action, and
better engagement with works promoters. Furthermore, in its first year of
operation the scheme resulted in a 26% reduction in street works-related
complaints and an additional 15% reduction in the second year, despite

Page 55
87

9

[RESTRICTED]

an increase of 15% in work volume. There was also an increase from
75% to 80% of first time reinstatements.
70. The Task Group was also informed of the benefits of a robust noticing
system. Hampshire County Council’s Street Works Team expressed the
view that if co-ordinated effectively, such a system could achieve the
same results as a permit scheme. A Street Authority’s use of the “duty to
co-operate” power under the NRSWA is a key element in the monitoring
of street works, and ultimately allows local authorities to refuse noticed
works if they are dissatisfied with the proposals. The Task Group also
noted that Hampshire’s noticing system currently saw similar levels of
over runs to permit schemes and that customer satisfaction in relation to
street works management in Hampshire was in the top ten nationally.

9

71. The utilities companies interviewed by the Task Group were all broadly
opposed to the introduction of a permit scheme in Surrey. They shared
the view that an effective noticing system could achieve the same results
as a permit scheme, and felt that their own internal monitoring processes
were robust enough to help ensure that works were completed on time
and to a high quality.
The View of the Task Group:
72. Although the Task Group recognised that there were benefits to both
permit schemes and noticing systems, Members were of the view that the
introduction of a permit scheme would be the most effective way to bring
about improvements to the management of street works in Surrey.
73. One of the main advantages of a permit scheme would be that conditions
could be attached to permits, placing clear constraints on the dates and
times of activities and the way in which work is carried out. The Task
Group was of the view that the use of such conditions was a key benefit in
operating a permit scheme, giving utility companies clear instruction as to
Surrey’s expectations of their works.
74. Overrunning works were highlighted as a key concern for residents in the
Task Group’s survey, and as a result it was felt that this would be an
important issue to tackle. Two senior Surrey MPs also contacted the Task
Group, suggesting that Members investigate how the Council could
impose fines on companies responsible for overrunning works more
effectively, and how the Council could go about implementing a lane
rental scheme. Although DfT guidance states that a Local Authority
cannot implement a lane rental scheme without first adopting a permit
scheme, the Task Group supported the idea of a lane rental scheme in
principle, and considered this factor when deciding to approve the
adoption of a permit scheme for Surrey’s highways.
75. To make the operation of issuing permits or licenses as efficient as
possible, the Task Group also suggested that the possibility of creating
one single point for the issue of street work licenses be explored.
76. The Task Group was of the view that a permit scheme would bring about
a number of improvements to the management of Surrey’s street works,

Page 56
88

[RESTRICTED]

in particular to co-ordination. The use of attached conditions could also
enhance the concept of joint working, with works promoters being
encouraged to carry out works at the same time through reduced permit
costs. These were all key concerns raised by residents and Councillors,
and the Task Group felt that a permit scheme would be the most effective
way to address such issues.
Areas with Special Conditions:
77. A key topic of interest for the Task Group was the impact that street works
and reinstatements have upon the street scene in areas with “special
conditions”, such as Conservation Areas. 4,291 roads in Surrey are
designated Conservation Areas, a figure which represents 22% of the
Council’s total highway network. With such a high proportion of the
County’s roads deemed as such, the management of street works in
these areas was regarded as a priority by the Task Group.
Reinstatements:
78. Reinstatements of excavations undertaken by utilities companies are
addressed by the SRoH. However, this document makes no specific
reference to works in areas with special conditions. Provision is made for
reinstatements in general, advising that existing materials (“modules”)
should be lifted carefully and stored for re-use, and that a limited stock of
modules should be retained by Local Authorities to be used by utilities
companies as required.
79. Members expressed concern at instances seen first-hand, and complaints
received from residents, that despite the provisions of the SRoH,
materials used in reinstatements by utilities companies in areas with
special conditions were often “inappropriate” and did not match existing
surfacing. Again, the SRoH advises that coloured surfacing shall be
permanently reinstated with like materials, though Members felt that this
provision had not proved sufficient to date in incentivising utilities
companies to regularly carry out reinstatements using “like for like”
materials.
80. Representatives from the utilities companies interviewed by the Task
Group presented the challenges they faced in using appropriate materials
for reinstatements in areas with special conditions. Although these
companies made significant efforts to, wherever possible, replace
materials “like for like”, in some cases this was very difficult from both a
financial and practical perspective. For example, finding replacement
Setts or cobbles for roads that were originally laid in the 1800s, or
reinstating roads for which the Local Authority has used expensive
materials from abroad, often made sourcing suitable replacements very
difficult.
81. The Task Group took this view into account and agreed that when the
Council surfaces roads using specialist materials, consideration should be
given to the ability of utilities companies to replace these materials at a
reasonable cost when they carry out reinstatements. However, Members
also felt that in some cases utilities companies did not make reasonable

Page 57
89

9

[RESTRICTED]

attempts to use acceptable alternatives to existing materials, with tarmac
as opposed to modern Setts being used on cobbled roads in some cases.
To help resolve this issue the Task Group felt that the County Council
should follow the advice given by the SRoH and explore the potential for
collating a limited central store of specialist surfacing materials for use in
areas with special conditions that could be made available to utilities
companies on a cost basis. This would seek to enable swifter and more
appropriate reinstatements in Conservation Areas.

9

82. Although the use of appropriate materials for reinstatements was not just
a concern isolated to Conservation Areas, Members felt that this issue
was sometimes caused in part by the numerous tiers of subcontractors
used by utilities companies. It was accepted by Members and officers that
the “lower down the chain” the work got, the slimmer the margins were for
profit. This had the inevitable effect of not necessarily encouraging the
completion of high quality works. Officers advised that current legislation
allowed for utilities companies to be accountable to the County Council for
the work and actions of their contractors. This requires utilities companies
to very carefully consider the merits and shortcomings of the use of
subcontractors prior to the commissioning of works.
83. Further concerns raised to the Task Group were issues surrounding
interim reinstatements in areas with special conditions. Although the
utilities companies interviewed by the Task Group stated that significant
time and resource was put in to implementing reinstatements first time,
the SRoH allows for temporary surface replacement and states that:
“An interim reinstatement can be carried out that conforms to the
prescribed standards until the permanent reinstatement is completed,
which should be within six months”.
84. Interim reinstatements are a particular problem in Conservation Areas
because they will most likely not match the surrounding pavement by their
very nature. The Task Group also noted that the Council had experienced
a number of instances whereby utilities companies had failed to return to
sites within the prescribed six month period to carry out the necessary
permanent works. It was therefore felt that the Council should take steps
to encourage the use of first time reinstatements in areas with special
conditions.
85. The Task Group was also informed of a “rent a jointer” scheme. This
would encourage companies to plan and complete works in a timely
fashion, by requiring them to pay for the use of jointers when installing
and maintaining electrical cabling. The introduction of such a scheme
would be particularly timely in the context of a current national incentive to
install high speed broadband across the country and the associated
electrical connections to cabinets required. Given the broad scale of this
project, it is likely that there will potentially be high levels of disruption to
Surrey’s highways, and the Task Group was therefore of the view that a
“rent a jointer” scheme should be supported in order to encourage the
swift completion of such works.

Page 58
90

[RESTRICTED]

Improved Use of Existing Reference Systems:
86. An additional way that the quality of materials used by utilities companies
in areas with special conditions could be improved is greater use of the
Surrey County Council Gazetteer. The Gazetteer is a reference system
used in the co-ordination of street works. It includes information such as
street name and type, ownership, reinstatement categories, special
designations, and special restrictions.
87. The Gazetteer does not at present include details of specialist
requirements for areas with special conditions. The Task Group felt that
subject to cost, the Gazetteer should be updated to include data relating
to the specialist surfacing requirements in these areas. Furthermore, if
utilities companies were given access to this information in advance of
works, they would be better prepared for sourcing specialist materials and
have sufficient time to plan for its procurement in their budgets.
88. Overall planning could be further enhanced by improved informationsharing between the County Council and utilities companies. A key issue
raised by members of the public was that a road would be disrupted for a
period of time by one set of works, and then a matter of days or weeks
later the road would be closed again for another, separate set of works.
The Task Group appreciated the frustration that this level of disruption
and inconvenience causes residents and believed that where possible,
utilities companies should be given better sight of the Surrey County
Council street works programme at an earlier stage to encourage joint
planning and working, with the aim of minimising inconvenience to road
users. Encouragingly, the utilities companies interviewed by the Task
Group were very supportive of this proposal and of the opinion that this
could vastly improve the co-ordination of street works in Surrey.
89. The Task Group was also of the view that information regarding works
should be shared with the relevant Local Member. As reflected by
responses to the Councillor survey, Local Authority representatives were
very much in favour of being used as a resource to communicate this
information to residents. Being “on the ground” and in regular contact with
local people, Councillors are an effective means of informing residents of
upcoming works.
Inspections:
90. A further way the quality of reinstatements in areas with special conditions
could be improved would be to retain high numbers of inspections of such
works. Current resource levels in Surrey County Council’s Street Works
Team are designed to match sample inspection quantities and
investigatory (third party report) inspections, both with associated defect
inspections, major site monitoring, over-run scrutinising and customer
enquiries.
91. At present, Surrey County Council’s Street Works Team has a number of
officers on fixed-term contracts. Following their introduction, the number
of inspections of utility company street work sites carried out has doubled,
resulting in a higher number of overrunning works being challenged and a

Page 59
91

9

[RESTRICTED]

significant reduction of outstanding queries on the Highways Service’s
Maximo system. This additional resource has significantly improved the
Council’s monitoring of utility company street works.
92. Therefore, it is suggested that a review into resource levels in the Street
Works Team be considered, in particular with regards to the nature of
officer contracts, to ensure that the current levels of site inspections can
be maintained.
Improving Street Works in Areas with Special Conditions:

9

93. In order to tie together the Task Group’s recommendations regarding
Street Works in areas with special conditions, it is proposed that a Surrey
County Council “Code of Conduct” be drawn up, building on the best
practice proposals outlined above. This should specifically include
reference to:
• The encouragement of first time reinstatements in areas with special
conditions;
• That wherever possible, statutory undertakers carefully remove and
store existing materials found on site, with a view to replacing them
upon the completion of works; and
• That statutory undertakers engage in greater communication with Local
Members when carrying out works in their area.
94. Furthermore, the Task Group suggested that the Surrey County Council
Highways Term Contract with regard to works in areas with special
conditions be reviewed and adjusted as required, in-line with these
recommendations.
Conclusions:
95. After considering the views of residents, Councillors, utilities companies
and officers, the Task Group concluded that there were a number of
actions the County Council could undertake to work more effectively with
utilities companies and improve the quality of street works in Surrey, with
the ultimate goal of minimising the disruption caused to residents and
road users. These actions can all be placed in to the following categories:
•
•
•
•

Communication
Monitoring and Reporting
Adoption of a Permit Scheme
Improved working in areas with special conditions

96. Recommendations relating to the above and how they can be achieved
are set out in further detail below.
Financial and value for money implications:
The recommendations put forward in this report will assist the Council in
achieving value for money by improving the co-ordination of, and level of
disruption caused by, street works in Surrey. This will reduce the negative

Page 60
92

[RESTRICTED]

financial impacts poorly-run street works have upon businesses, residents
and the highway asset itself.
Equalities Implications:
No negative implications identified, however better planned and delivered
utility works would improve any interaction that less able groups may
experience at street work sites.
Risk Management Implications:
No negative implications identified. In addition to statutory duty requirements,
the public has an expectation on the Council to effectively manage road works
which creates a reputational risk. The recommendations put forward in this
report will further assist the Council in achieving its statutory duty and
managing risks by improving the co-ordination of, and level of disruption
caused by, street works in Surrey.
Implications for the Council’s Priorities or Community Strategy:
As detailed under “financial and value for money implications”, the report’s
recommendations would have a positive impact upon the Council’s Corporate
Strategy objectives to deliver value and quality to Surrey’s residents. The
recommendations aim to place stricter controls on works promoters to
complete their works on time and to a high standard.
Recommendations:
Recommendation 1 - That a clear and accessible internal and external
communications policy with regards to the publicising of street works is
developed, to include:
a) Clearer and easier to access information on the Surrey County Council
website in relation to street works, including specific pages detailing utilities
works in Surrey.
b) A Utility Works “quick links” heading on the Council’s “report it online” page.
c) Greater use of social media.
d) A commitment to adhere to the Council’s Customer Promise, with all public
reports to be acknowledged and responded to, within a reasonable
timescale.
e) The linkage of Symology to the Surrey County Council Contact Centre to
improve the efficiency and speed at which general street works enquiries
are dealt with.
f) Automatic “areas of interest” alerts to be sent the relevant Local Member by
the Elgin system, to enable Members to better communicate the
commencement of works to residents.

Page 61
93

9

[RESTRICTED]

Recommendation 2 – That the process for monitoring and reporting the
quality of street works be made more cost effective and efficient for the
County Council, and have greater incentive for utilities companies to
complete their works on time and to a high standard. Specifically:
a) That Surrey County Council, in conjunction with South East 7 members and
the Highway Authorities and Utilities Committee, lobby utility company
regulators and the Department for Transport on the following issues:

9

• That utility company street works performance be taken into account
when setting prices;
• That Street Authorities be granted greater flexibility in the allocation
and use of inspections at various stages of street works;
• That utility companies be encouraged to carry out in-house inspections
of their own works; and
• That a timeline for the repair of defective works be set, with penalties to
be applied in cases of non-compliance.
b) That the award of future contracts for works on the County’s highway takes
into account the statistical street works performance of the companies
concerned.
c) That current efforts by Surrey County Council’s Street Works Team to
embrace new handheld technology and smarter working methods be
supported.
d) That the role of Boroughs, Districts, Parish and Town Councils and other
known community organisations in the inspection and reporting of
reinstatements be further explored by officers.
Recommendation 3 – That proposals to introduce a “common”
permitting scheme with East Sussex County Council, to co-ordinate all
works on the Surrey County Council Highway, be endorsed.
a) It is also suggested that the possibility be explored for the creation of one
central point in the Highways Service for the issuing of street works
licences.
Recommendation 4 – That the processes around the planning,
monitoring and execution of street works, particularly including areas
with special conditions such as Conservation Areas, be made more
effective and robust, through implementation of the following proposals:
a) That a Surrey County Council ‘Code of Conduct’ for street works be drawn
up, building on best practice, with specific reference to the following:
•
•

•

The encouragement of first time reinstatements in Conservation Areas;
That wherever possible, statutory undertakers carefully remove and
store existing materials found on site, with a view to replacing them
upon the completion of works; and
That statutory undertakers engage in greater communication with Local
Members when carrying out works in their area.

Page 62
94

[RESTRICTED]

b) That where possible, utilities companies be given better sight of the Surrey
County Council works programme at an earlier stage, to enhance joint
planning and improve the overall co-ordination of works.
c) That the Surrey County Council Gazetteer be updated to include all details
relating to areas with special conditions/surfaces.
d) That a review into resource levels in the Street Works Team be considered,
in particular with regards to the nature of officer contracts, to ensure that
the current levels of site inspections can be maintained.
e) That when the County Council plans major road schemes, sufficient
consideration be given to the materials used, so that they will give a similar
aesthetic effect to the surrounding area but also enable utilities companies
to reasonably source suitable replacements for reinstatements.
f) That the potential for the collation of a limited central store of specialist
surfacing materials by Surrey County Council be explored, containing
materials that can be ordered on behalf of utilities companies on a cost
basis, as required, to enable swifter and more appropriate reinstatements
in Conservation Areas.
g) That the promotion of “rent a jointer” schemes be supported, with particular
reference to the forthcoming High Speed Broadband rollout.
h) That the content of the Surrey County Council Highways Term Contract
with regard to highway repairs, particularly including areas with special
conditions, be reviewed and adjusted as required, in-line with the
recommendations outlined above.
Next steps:
Following consideration by the Select Committee, the Task Group’s report will
be submitted to the Cabinet meeting of 5 February 2013 for approval.
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Report contacts:
Thomas Pooley, Scrutiny Officer, Democratic Services.
Tel: 020 8541 9902. Email: thomas.pooley@surreycc.gov.uk
Lucy Monie, Operations Group Manager, Surrey Highways.
Tel: 020 8451 9896. Email: lucy.monie@surreycc.gov.uk
Matthew Jezzard, Traffic & Street Works Manager, Surrey Highways.
Tel: 020 8551 7453. Email: matthew.jezzard@surreycc.gov.uk
Kevin Orledge, Street Works Officer, Surrey Highways.
Tel: 01483 518 310. Email: kevin.orledge@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 63
95

9

[RESTRICTED]

Sources/background papers:
• DfT document: Specification for Reinstatement Openings in the Highway
• New Roads and Street Works Act (1991)
• New Roads and Street Works Act Code of Practice for Inspections, 2nd
edition (2002)
• Traffic Management Act (2004)
Annexe A – Glossary of terms
Annexe B – List of witnesses/consultees
Annexe C – Survey analysis

9

Page 64
96

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
V1
01/10/2014
1 of 30

Surrey County Council Street Works Department

9

Major & Major Plus Works Process

Process Ownership
Owner:

Trevor Merchant

Overview

Position:

Network Coordination
Manager

Author:

Trevor Merchant

This document explains how the
street-works department within
Surrey County Council process
major & major plus works. It
details how the coordination,
compliance and technical support
teams interact and communicate
with all stakeholders prior to and
during any works being
undertaken.

Contributions Matt Jezzard, Kevin
From:
Orledge, Michael
Coombes, Rhiannon
Vince, Compliance and
Coordination Teams
Tele:

01483 517434

Email:

trevor.merchant@surreycc.gov.uk

Page 97

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

Contents
1 Introduction
2 Process overview
3 Process in detail
9

4

References

Page 98

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

1 Introduction
When street works or road works are undertaken on the Highway they are
legislatively categorised into 3 types.
Minor works are for works with durations of 1 to 3 days.
Standard works are for works with durations of 4 to 10 days.
Major works are for works with durations of more than 10 days additionally
they are categorised as major works if they require a temporary traffic
regulation order (TTRO) and or are part of a known planned works
programme. Permit applications for major works must be submitted by
works promoters at least 3 months prior to the proposed start date.
In order to enhance and supplement our coordination duties we have within
Surrey County Council Street Works department added a fourth category
entitled major plus works. These works are identified by Network
Coordinators during the major works process and are works which it is
envisaged, will have a significant impact not only on the Surrey County
Council highways network but also on Highways Agency and or other
Highway Authority networks. Due to the potential of these works to affect a
large and varied amount of stakeholders, an enhanced level of coordination
must be undertaken. Additionally in order to minimise traffic congestion
during these works and to ensure advanced warning of the works is given,
enhanced stakeholder communications and engagement must also be
undertaken.
Legislation stipulates utility companies have the legal right to lay, access,
repair, replace and maintain their plant and equipment contained within the
public highway so works cannot be refused by Surrey County Council or
any Authority indefinitely. They do however have a Duty under The New
Roads and Street-works Act 1991 (NRSWA) to actively participate and
assist with the coordination of all works with the highway authorities, to
ensure traffic disruption is minimised whilst the works are being undertaken.
In order to undertake works on the Surrey County Council highway network
utility companies have to obtain a Permit prior to the works being
undertaken. Permit submissions by statutory utilities are made via the
Electronic Transfer of Notices (EToN) system. Non statutory companies
(one off promoters) can also submit permit applications and have the facility
to do by sending paper versions either electronically, by post or by fax.
It is a criminal offence for anyone to undertake registerable works on the
highway without first having obtained a Permit (only works carried out under
s50 of the Highway Act 1980 are exempt)

Page 99

9

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Once received Permit applications are reviewed and processed by the
Network Coordination team within the Street Works department of Surrey
County Council who, dependent on the nature, type, duration and timing of
the works can grant or refuse permission for the works to be undertaken.
When granting permission for the works to be undertaken, Network
Coordinators can apply Conditions to the permit which are a set of
Conditions created to assist with the minimising of disruption and
congestion on the highway whilst the works are being undertaken. These
Conditions must be adhered to by promoters, failure to do so is a Criminal
offence and can result in a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) being issued.

9

All Permit applications received are processed in accordance with the
South East Permit Scheme (SEPS) legislation
SEPS is a Department for Transport (DFT) approved Permit scheme and is
the legislative instrument utilised by Surrey County Council to coordinate all
Registerable activities on the Surrey highway network.
SEPS is a permit scheme which commenced in November 2013 and was
formed by Surrey County Council and East Sussex County Council who
jointly created and introduced what is known as a Common Permit Scheme.
A Common Permit Scheme allows other Highway Authorities (should they
wish to do so) to join and become members of the scheme. The ethos is
one of providing utilities a common legislative means of obtaining
permission to undertake works on the highway (many highway authorities
are still utilising the noticing system rather than a permit scheme). Currently
utility companies have to understand and comply with many different types
of schemes and legislation in order to undertake works on the highway
often resulting in inconsistent and incorrect applications being submitted.
The application of SEPS is also governed by other DFT legislation which is
detailed in the references section of this document. Any application of
SEPS must comply with this legislation. Additionally hard copies of this
legislation are available and are situated in the document cabinet within the
Street Works department.

2

Process Overview

Step 1 Proposed Job details received from
Promoter.
Are there sufficient details to complete
disruption
Page 100
calculator?

Network
Coordinator to
request exact
details of works
and full TM plan/s

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

No

Yes

9

Step 2 Disruption Calculator Score

Score 0-20

Score 21-30

Score 31-35

Major Works (1)

Major Works (2)

Major Plus Works

Step 3 Follow and
Complete Major
Works (1) Action List

Step 3 Follow and
Complete Major Works
(2) Action List

Step 3 Follow and Complete
Major Plus Works Action List

Step 4 Follow and
Complete
Communication &
Engagement Action

Step 4 Follow and
Complete
Communication &
Engagement Action
List

Step 4 Follow and Complete
Communications &
Engagement Action List

Step 5 Prior to
Works Start

Step 5 Prior to Works
Start

Step 5 Prior to Works Start

If required
Compliance
inspections

Compliance Inspections

Site meeting required

Step 6
Stakeholders
Updated

Compliance Inspections
Further site Meetings required

Further site meetings
required

Drop in Session held

Drop in Session held

Stakeholder Meeting

Step 6
Stakeholders
Updated

Page 101

Step 6
Stakeholders
Updated

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Step 7 In Progress

Step 7 In Progress

Step 7 In Progress

Site Inspections

Site Inspections

Site Inspections

Early completions or
extensions updated to
Technical Support and
stakeholders informed

Early completions/
extensions/changes
updated to Technical
Support and stakeholders

Early completions/
extensions/changes/progress
updated to Technical Support
and stakeholders

9

Step 8 Works
Complete

Step 8 Works
Complete

End

End

Step 8 Works
Complete

Step 9
Project/Works
Review Meeting
Continuous
Improvement
Cycle

End

3

Process in Detail
Steps 1 & 2 Major Works Notification/Potential Impact
Notification of proposed major works can be received in many different
ways and the potential impact of these works in many instances cannot be

Page 102

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

known or envisaged until full and comprehensive details of the works are
received. The following are some of the typical ways notification is received:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Received as a Forward Planning Notice via EToN
Received as a Provisional Permit Application (PAA) via EToN
Received as a Permit application
Email correspondence
Postal Notification
Verbal conversations via telephone and or meetings

In all instances full details of the proposed works and the traffic
management being utilised must be received and this must be requested
by the Network Coordinator before any impact can be reviewed and
ascertained. Once the full details of the proposed works have been
received the disruption calculator must be utilised which will provide a good
indication of the potential impact of the works and categorise the works into
Major (1), Major (2) or Major Plus Works.
The disruption calculator can be found on- S drive/core/Streetworks
Team/major works and projects/A project sheet templates.
The disruption calculator utilises four elements, Traffic Sensitivity, Traffic
Management, timing and duration which have to be scored 1-5 and entered
into the A,B,C and D boxes.
The first two scores are then multiplied (A x B) and then C & D are added
(diagram 1 shows 4x4+4+5 = 25), this gives an overall score which
determines whether the works are to be classified as Major works (1),
Major works (2) or Major Plus works.
Once the works have been classified, the coloured boxes dictate which
process must be followed by the network coordinator. This ensures a
consistent and thorough approach is taken in coordinating each category of
works.
Scores at the margins of the classifications should be discussed with line
management to agree the appropriate category.

Page 103

9

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

Diagram 1
Disruption Calculator

9

Page 104

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

If the works have been classified as Major works (2) or Major Plus works a
new folder must be created in S drive/core/Streetworks Team/major works
and projects in the appropriate works promoter folder with the title relating
to the road name and locality of the works for example High Street Oxshott
Folders must include a date identifier in teh form of “month and year”
All correspondence and documentation including the disruption calculator
and all action lists must be copied and filed in this folder. This enables all
staff to access information in times of absence and also provides a record
of all coordination activities and agreements in case queries or uncertainty
arise. Diagrams 2a to 2d detail how to create a folder using the above as
an example
Diagram 2a
Creating a Major works and Major Plus works folder

Page 105

9

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

Diagram 2b

9

Diagram 2c

All templates
and Action
List sheets are
contained in
this folder

Page 106

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Diagram 2d

9

This score derived from the disruption calculator may change when site
meetings are undertaken. It would be envisaged that a significant volume
of major works and all major plus works would required a site meeting with
the works promoter along with other key stakeholders ie Compliance
Officer, Surrey Police, Local Area Officers and Passenger Transport. The
works route would require walking to agree if the works, duration and TM
being utilised both comply with legislation (the red book) and are
appropriate for the works and unquestionably if a less disruptive means of
undertaking the works can be found. A site meeting action list must be
used when site meetings are undertaken and a copy saved into the works
folder.
The categorisation of the works could change once site meetings have
been undertaken, in these instances the disruption calculator must be
amended to reflect the changes and establish if the category has changed.

Page 107

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

When undertaking site meetings the Major works site meeting Action List
must be completed and saved into the works folder. A template for this can
be found within the A project sheet templates. This Action lLst ensures all
aspects of the works are reviewed and discussed thoroughly during the site
meeting and provides an aide memoir for Network Coordinators and
Officers.
Diagram 3
Major Works Site Meeting Action List
9

Major/Major Plus Works Site Meeting Action List
Description and
Necessity for the
Works
Attendees at site meeting:Utility/Promoter Undertaking the
Works:Exact Location of the Works:Reason for the Works being
undertaken:Brief desription of the
project/works being undertaken:Full Traffic Management(TM) plans detailing any phasing and the exact
excavation route/s received:Works methodology:TM plans agreed on site ? are
amendments required:If required positioning of site
compound agreed:Do the TM plans specify the
distance between any temp
traffic signal heads:-

Page 108

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Will the TM be in place 24 hours a
day or can excavations be secured
such that and TM removed
overnight:Will the TM have to be manually
controlled, how will this be done
and during which hours?:If the works involve a TTRO what are the closure arrangements ie hard
closure ?, emergency access? Etc:Will the works affect bus routes and or bus stops:Which Bus routes (service
Number) and which Bus Stops:Have alternative arrangements
been agreed with Passenger
Transport:Have the TM arrangements been
agreed with Surrey Police and
Local Area:Will the works affect any Highways
Agency roads:Are the works on a Highways
Agency Strategic diversion route:If yes have the Highways Agency
been consulted?:Will the works affect any other
Highway Authority roads:If yes have the other Highway
Authority been consulted ?:Timing of the Works
Proposed Start Date:-

Proposed Completion
Date:-

Page 109

9

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

Days and Hrs of Working:-

Mon-Frid
Sat
to

to
to

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

/
/ Sun

Out of hours working agreed with
Environmental Health:Are the works in the vacinity of a
school or college?

9
Are the works in the vacinity of a
hospital or blue light station?
Do the works need to be
undertaken during
school/college/University
holidays:Do the dates clash with any
planned Events :What will the advance warning signs say, where will they be erected and
when. What size will the signs be:Will a drop in session for
stakeholders be held, if yes where
and when and how
communicated:What specific roads will be
letter dropped:What will be the permit model
conditions be (if works are
Permitable):Have the model conditions been
agreed and by whom:Network Coordinator
Name:-

Date:-

Page 110

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

9

3

Process in Detail
Step 3 Establishing works details
Once the classification or type of major works has been established
through the disruption calculator score and site meetings, the correct major
works coordination Action list must be completed and followed by Network
Coordinators.
All Action Lists must be followed implicitly because depending on the
category of works, authorisation must be given at certain stages of the
process by the Network Coordination Manager or Street Works Manager
before any works can proceed. This applies to both the major works
coordination Action Lists and the major works communication and
engagement Action Lists.

Diagram 4
Major works (1) Coordination Action List

Page 111

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

Major Works (1) Coordination Action list
Score of 0-20 on Disruption Calculator- Non T/S,Typically Out of hours working/Short Durations
Full TM plans received detaling the exact excavation route/method with TM plans for each section/phase of works,
timing of the works , duration and exact location(road name, number and town)
Have you requested and received a statement from the promoter explaining why the works are being undertaken
Have the works been discussed with the compliance officer for the area

9

Is a site meeting required?
Has a site meeting been arranged with officer and the works supervisor/manager
If the TM and works will affect bus stops or bus route (TTRO) passenger transport must also be invited
Has agreement been made during site meeting on TM method, timing and duration
Has due consideration been given to out of hours working, weekend working, location of schools, shops
Has the Major works Site Meeting Action List been completed and saved into the works folder
Are the works subject to permit submission
Have any model conditions been agreed with promoter and detailed on the permit IE off peak working,
school holiday working, night works, TM layout for site (TTRO especially), extent of advance warning/letter drop

Network Coordinator Name:-

Date:-

Diagram 5
Major works (2) Coordination Action List

Page 112

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

YES NO

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Major Works (2) Coordination Action list

YES NO

Score of 21-30 on Disruption Calculator-Typically T/S street with TM
Full TM plans received detaling the exact excavation route/method with TM plans for each section/phase of works,
timing of the works , duration and exact location(road name, number and town)
Have you requested and received a statement from the promoter explaining why the works are being undertaken
Have the works been discussed with the compliance officer for the area or nominated officer by the Compliance manager

9
Is a site meeting required?

IF NO
Have the Network Coordination Manager or Street works manager been briefed/informed of the works
and authorised works to proceed

IF YES
Has a site meeting been arranged with officer, local area maintenance engineer, Surrey Police, the works supervisor/manager
If the TM and works will affect bus stops or bus route (TTRO) passenger transport must also be invited
Has a folder been created for works in Major works and projects
Have TM plans been sent to site meeting attendees and saved into folder
Has agreement been made during site visit on TM method, timing and duration
Has due consideration been given to off peak working, plating works during peak hours, weekend work, school holidays,
Events and other works
Has the Major works Site Meeting Action List been completed and saved into the works folder
Are the works subject to permit submission
Have the model conditions been agreed with promoter and detailed on the permit IE working hrs, TM plan,
extent of advance warning/letter drop
Have the Network Coordination Manager or Street works Manager been briefed/informed
and authorised works to proceed

Network coordinator Name:-

Date:-

Diagram 6
Major Plus works Coordination Action List

Page 113

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Major Plus Works Coordination Action list

YES NO

Score of 31-30 on Disruption Calculator-Typically T/S streets with TM affecting HA roads
Full TM plans received detaling the exact excavation route/method with TM plans for each section/phase of works,
timing of the works , duration and exact location(road name, number and town)
Have you requested and received a statement from the promoter explaining why the works are being undertaken
Have the works been discussed with the compliance officer for the area or nominated officer by the Compliance manager

9

Have the Network Coordination Mgr and Street Works Mgr been briefed of the proposed works
Has a site visit been arranged with officer, local area maintenance engineer, Surrey Police, the works supervisor/manager
If the TM and works will affect bus stops or bus route (TTRO) passenger transport must also be invited
Have the HA and or other Highway Authority been consulted with regarding the proposed works
Has a folder been created for works in Major works and projects
Have TM plans been sent to site meeting attendees and saved into folder
Has agreement been made during site meeting on TM method, timing,duration and exact route
of excavation/s and dimensions
Has due consideration been given to out of hours working, plating works during peak hours, weekend work,
school holidays, Events and other works(HA)
Has a Major works Site Meeting Action List been completed and saved into works folder
Are the works subject to permit submission
Have the model conditions been agreed with promoter and detailed on the permit IE working hrs, extent of TM plan
Timing of works, extent of advance warning and letter drop
Have the Network Coordination Manager and Street works Manager been given a FULL brief of the proposed works
Has a full Internal Coordination meeting taken place and the proposed works briefed out so the full implications of works
can be reviewed, discussed and an agreed plan documented
Have the proposed works been authorised to proceed by Network Coordination Mgr & Street Works Mgr
IF NO---- The proposed works cannot proceed until last two actions Agreed

Network Coordinator Name:-

Date:-

To ensure all coordination activities are captured from receiving notification
of the works through to works completion an Events and Timeline
document must be saved into the works folder and all significant activities,

Page 114

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

actions, meetings and correspondence entered. This facilitates a
comprehensive record of the works being kept so if required another
member of the team can in times of absence continue with the coordination
of the works and also to capture the often unrecorded elements of Network
Coordination duties. The Events and Timeline log list the key steps to be
undertaken any other actions or events undertaken ie drop in session must
also be entered. Additional lines should be added into the sheet as required
Diagram 7
Events and Timeline Log
Date

3

9

Action

Information

Step

Notification Received of proposed works

Step

Disruption Calculator score

Step

Project Planning/Site Meeting - Utility, Passegner Transport, Surrey Police, Local Area representation.

Step

Full Internal Coordination meeting with Streetworks,Traffic signal team, Traffic survey team, Surrey Police, Passenger Transport,
Local Area

Step

Advanced warning to Chair, Local Member, Police, local area and Planned maintenance

Step

Street Works External Information Sheet Release

Step

Inspection of Advanced warning signage placement

Step

Site Inspection on commencement of works

Step

In Progress Site Inspections

Step

Project Review Meeting-Continuous Improvement Cycle

Process in detail

Page 115

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Step 4 Stakeholder Communications and Engagement
Due to the potential impact Major and Major Plus works can have on the
highway network it is vital the correct level of stakeholder communication
and engagement is undertaken. It is also paramount communication and
engagement is undertaken well in advance of the works to enable all
stakeholders affected to be made aware and to have sufficient time to plan
alternative arrangements for travel and or access whilst the works are being
undertaken.
9

Proactive, timely communication and engagement can be instrumental in
reducing customer enquiries and complaints centred around lack of prior
warning or information.
In certain instances (as instructed by the Street Works Manager) it may be
necessary to meet with and consult with, the local Member/s for the area
prior to the works being agreed with the Works Promoter. This is not the
norm and would only be undertaken if the works or project were envisaged
to be of a particularly disruptive nature or sensitivity to a given area.
Once the exact details and timing of the works have been established and
agreed the Network Coordinators must follow, complete and save a copy
(in the works folder) of the Major and Major Plus Works communication and
engagement action list .This action list is based on the Surrey Street-works
Communication/Engagement Strategy and details the level of
communication and engagement required for all category of works
depending on the traffic sensitivity and whether traffic management is being
used .For this process the section on Major works has been utilised. It also
ensures a consistent and appropriate type of communication is
corresponded to stakeholders. Certain actions on the list require
authorisation by the Network Coordination Manager or The Street-Works
Manager in order to continue.

Page 116

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Diagram 8
Major and Major Plus Communication & Engagement Action List

9

Page 117

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Major Works Communication & Engagement Action list
For Guidance Please read in inconjunction with Surrey Streetworks Communication/Engagement Strategy
If you have any queries or concerns please speak with the Network Coordination Mgr or Streetworks Mgr
For Major Works (1 )

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Have discussions taken place with the Utility/Utilities(collabrative working must be encouraged)
and are ALL aspects of the works understood and agreed ie TM, duration, Timing, Working hrs and Method/Route
Have the Local Cllr, Local Committee Chair and Local Area via the Area Highway Mgr been advised of the works
(examples of correspondence can be found in Major Works and Projects-A project sheet template folder)
Have the Technical Support team been advised of the works
Have the contact centre been advised of the works

9

Have advance warning signs and letter drop instructions been detailed in the model conditions on the permit

Network coordinator Name:-

Date:-

For Major Works (2 )
Have discussions taken place with the Utility/Utilities(collabrative working must be encouraged)
and are ALL aspects of the works understood and agreed ie TM, duration, Timing, Working hrs and Method/Route
Have the Local Cllr and Local Area via the Area Highway Mgr been engaged and consulted with on the works
Has the Local Committee Chairman been advised of the works
(examples of correspondence can be found in Major Works and Projects-A project sheet template folder)
Has an external information sheet been compiled
(examples of this can be found in Major Works and Projects-A project sheet template folder)
Has the information sheet must be authorised by the Network Coordination Mgr or The Streetworks Mgr

The External Information Sheet cannot be sent out until Authorisation is obtained
Have the Technical Support team been fully briefed on the works
Have the contact centre been advised of the works

Network coordinator Name:-

Date:-

For Major Plus Works
Have discussions taken place with the Utility/Utilities(collabrative working must be encouraged)
and are ALL aspects of the works understood and agreed ie TM, duration, Timing, Working hrs and Method/Route
Have the Local Cllr and Local Area via the Area Highway Mgr been engaged and consulted with on the works
This includes Passenger Transport if bus routes will be affected
Has the Local Committee Chairman been advised of the works
(examples of correspondence can be found in Major Works and Projects-A project sheet template folder)
Has a FULL Internal Coordination meeting taken place with the Traffic & Streetworks Mgr, Traffic management teams
and Local Area and if required Surrey Police and Passenger Transport with an agreed plan
Has an external information sheet been compiled
(examples of this can be found in Major Works and Projects-A project sheet template folder)
Has the information sheet must be authorised by the Network Coordination Mgr or The Streetworks Mgr

The External Information Sheet cannot be sent out until Authorisation is obtained
Have the Technical Support team been fully briefed on the works
Have the contact centre been advised of the works

Network coordinator Name:-

Date:-

When Major works or Major Plus works are being undertaken one of the
initial actions on this list is for Members of the area to be informed about
the works prior to any general stakeholder communication being sent. This

Page 118

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

would be by means of an email from the Network Coordinator giving brief
details about the nature and reason for the works, the timing of the works
and the type of traffic management being utilised. This enables the local
Member to be aware of any upcoming works and subsequently be in a
position to answer any stakeholder queries and concerns arising from
future communications. An example of this correspondence can be found in
S drive/core/Streetworks Team/Major Works and Projects/ A Project Sheet
Templates/examples.
Diagram 9
Local Member Correspondence

Another key element of the action list is for the Network Coordinator to
compile an External Information Sheet. The External Information Sheet is
the initial notification of the works to stakeholders and provides brief detail

Page 119

9

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

about the nature and reason for the works, the timing and duration of the
works and the potential disruption they may cause. These Information
Sheets can also be used to release updated reports as the project
progresses.

9

Once the External Information Sheet content has been agreed and
authorised by the Network Coordination Manager or Street Works Manager,
the stakeholder contact list must be used to compile the appropriate group
of stakeholders to communicate with. This document can be found in-S
drive/core/Streetworks Team/Major Works and Projects/ A Project Sheet
Templates. This list is not exhaustive but does provide guidance on the
type of stakeholders that need to be engaged.
Information Sheets are sent to a variety of stakeholders. It is essential that
specific industry terminology is only used where no alternative exists to
describe the works and or implications

Page 120

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Diagram 10 – can you use one with a map please An example of an External Information Sheet

EXAMPLE - ADVANCED INFORMATION ON STREET
WORKS
9

Road Name

Vicarage Road, Kingfield, Woking
Thames Water

Utility
Reason for Works

Thames Water require to install a sewerage attenuation system
related to the Moor Lane housing development due to the marginal
capacity of the current system. This will effectively take the form of
underground storage capacity.
Works will be in the carriageway and will require the road to be
closed for the duration of the works.

Additional
Information
Roseberry Crescent will also be closed at its junction with
Vicarage Road.

Extents of Works

The works limits will be from the junction with Kingfirled Road
A247 adjacent to the Sainsbury’s Local store through to the
junction with Rosebury Crescent and The Moorlands.West End
High Street (Southern end of Gordons School playing fields)
through to the junction with Ford Road. A total length of just under
ondiversion
one
mile route will be signed via the A320 Egley Road and the
A
A247 Kingfield Road

Highway Impact
Significant traffic impact with delays can be expected
Work is currently planned to start on the XX of August and is
estimated to continue for four months..
Works Duration

SCC Contact
Number
Thames Contact
Number
Type of Works

0300 200 1003

SCC Street Works
contacts

Justin O’Neill

Date Issued: 01/01/2014
Major

Issue number: 001

Page 121

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Diagram 11
Stakeholder Contact List
Utility / Project

Cabinet Member

9

Contacts
john.furey@surreycc.gov.uk

Local Committee Chair

@surreycc.gov.uk

Local Surrey Member

@surreycc.gov.uk

Affected Surrey Members

@surreycc.gov.uk

Borough or District Council
(Officer Level)
Borough or District Leader
Borough or District Members
Parrish or Town Members
Surrey Officers

Environment Passenger Transport/ENV/SCC,
%Contact Centre Officers,
SW Technical Support/EAI/SCC,
Local Highways Office Customer Care
surreycontrolhub@maygurney.co.uk
Area Office Reception, (i.e. Quadrant, A02, etc)
Area Highway Manager
Local Area Maintenance Engineer
keith.scott@surreycc.gov.uk
tim.brown@surreycc.gov.uk
matthew.jezzard@surreycc.gov.uk
angela.kitching@surreycc.gov.uk
amanda.richards@surreycc.gov.uk
joy.ridley@surreycc.gov.uk
James Osborne/CEO/SCC,
tony.casey@surreycc.gov.uk
Paul.Millen@surreycc.gov.uk
Mike R Dawson/EAI/SCC,
Neil Kenyon-Smith/EAI/SCC,
lucy.monie@surreycc.gov.uk

Emergency services

Watch Officer Command & Control/FRS/SCC
countyhq@surrey.sja.org.uk
Road/Work.Closures@secamb.nhs.uk

Page 122

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref

MMPW 001

Issue
Date
Page

1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Watch Officer Mobilising Control/FRS/SCC@SCC
commandandcontrol@surreycc.gov.uk
Misc Emergency Services

danny.johnson@surreycc.gov.uk
Steve.tilling@secamb.nhs.uk
Dave.wells@secamb.nhs.uk
Mark.bailey@secambs.nhs.uk

Surrey Police Road Safety

Cannon14422@surrey.pnn.police.uk
Cannon12785@surrey.pnn.police.uk
Brown15030@surrey.pnn.police.uk

Local Police

@surrey.police.uk

Royal Mail

gary.caine@royalmail.com
michael.strange@royalmail.com,
nick.eaton@royalmail.com,
rooksana.cassim@royalmail.com
paul.woolterton@royalmail.com

Surrey Chamber

ella.parkes@surrey-chambers.co.uk

Road Haulage

r.williams@rha.uk.net
Southern-eastern@rha.uk.net
salessupport@fta.co.uk

Utility Company
Public Houses
Churches
Schools
Residents Association
Local Societies
Sports Clubs
Scouts/Guides
Masons/Round Table/Lions/etc
Other interested parties

3

Process in detail
Step 5 Prior to Works Start
Should a drop in session have been arranged by the promoter to
communicate and engage with stakeholders on all aspects of the works, it
is envisaged a member of the Network Coordination team will attend.
However due to the location and timing this is not always possible.

Page 123

9

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Prior to the works commencing (usually two to three weeks) Compliance
Officers will undertake a site inspection to ensure the advance warning
signs including any Vehicle Messaging Signs(VMS) have been erected on
site. Inspecting they are in the correct locations, comprise of the correct
wording and comply with legislation as agreed with promoters and detailed
within the model Conditions on the permit (if applicable). Also on a random
sample basis, an audit will be carried out to verify letter drops have been
undertaken prior to any works commencing. This could include speaking
with residents and businesses affected to verify letter drops were
undertaken. Any breaches to these consultation and publicity
agreements/conditions can result in Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) being
issued or ultimately the works being stopped

9

The timeliness and methodology of these site inspections is a process
owned by the Compliance Manager and as such is the subject of a
separate compliance process.

3

Process in detail
Step 6 Stakeholders Updated
If for any reason changes have been made to the works for example
change in duration dates, change of work methodology, or a change to the
Traffic Management being utilised, these will need to be communicated to
the stakeholder list by means of an updated External Information Sheet.

3

Process in detail
Step 7 Works in Progress
On the first day of the works a Compliance Officer will inspect the works to
ensure all agreements regarding the traffic management and methodology
of the works are being complied with. Regular periodic inspections of the
works will be undertaken whilst the works are in progress. The regularity of
these inspections will be in accordance with the Compliance Major Works
Inspection Process.
Any changes to the works site that are likely to affect traffic flows will be
communicated by the Officer to the Network Coordinator and if agreed,
updates will be sent to all stakeholders. Additionally should extensions or
changes to works duration be requested the Officer and Network
Coordinator shall consult with management if necessary (in the case of
Major Plus works this will need to be authorised) and agree on whether the
request is acceptable and will be agreed. If it is not be acceptable for an
extension to be agreed section 74 over stay charges (NRSWA) should be
invoked to ensure the works are completed quickly. Once a decision has
been made or information received from the works promoters on changes
to completion dates stakeholders will need to be updated.

Page 124

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

3

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

Process in detail
Step 8 Works Completed
Once the Network Coordination team have been informed the works have
been completed they must be reviewed to ensure they match with the
Permit dates. Should these not match pertinent stakeholders ie in the case
of early completions passenger transport, must be informed. If completion
dates do match permit date no further action, the Compliance Officer must
visit the site to inspect the cleared site.
9

3

Process in detail
Step 9 Continuous Review Meeting
In order to ensure continual improvement once Major Plus works have
been completed a review meeting must take place which ideally should
include the Traffic Manager, Street Works Manager, Network Coordination
Manager, Traffic Systems Manager, Network Coordinator, Compliance
Officer, Passenger Transport representative and a Surrey Police
representative. During this meeting all aspects of the works can be
discussed from the planning stages to completion. Any lessons learned can
then be implemented with improvements made to this process. The
meeting should also review the content of any customer enquiries or
complaints that may have been received during the works. Minutes of this
meeting will be taken and stored centrally so any resulting actions or
improvements can be monitored.

Page 125

Major & Major Plus Works

Ref
Issue
Date
Page

4

MMPW 001
1
01/10/2014
3 of 30

References

• NRSWA 1991
• Traffic Management Act 2004

9

• Code of Practice 3rd Edition revised 2009-NRSWA Code of
Practice for the coordination of street-works and works for road
purposes related matters
• Surrey Street-works Communication/Engagement Strategy
• Technical Specification for EToN
• South East Permit Scheme

Page 126

Surrey County Council

Surrey County Council
Street Works Department
Communication and Engagement Policy
Works that take place on the public highway are of great interest to the users of Surrey’s
highway network. The level of interest most often corresponding to the significance of the
activity in terms of traffic disruption and or duration.
Communication, both internal and external, forms an essential part of the Street Works
department strategy to inform and engage and contributes to the Member and Customer
focus of Surrey Highways.
Effective proactive communication will support the reduction of reactive responses enabling
a better managed service.
This document defines levels of communication and engagement expected relative to type
of Street Works Activity. (Works for Road Purposes are not included in this strategy)
With the exception of the sending of Tweets, the responsibility for this process is held within
the Coordination Team within the Street Works department.
It would be expected that the relevant Network Coordinator lead the communication and
engagement process and the local Street Works Officer be included in early discussions with
works promoters and details passed to Technical Support for information.
In all instances below traffic management refers to temporary traffic signals or road
closures only.
General information on road works in Surrey can be obtained by following the web link
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-maintenance-andcleaning/roadworks-in-my-area

Works category definitions relate to those as defined in the New Roads and Street Works
Act 1991
Traffic Sensitive Streets are those listed in the National Street Gazetteer in accordance with
criteria set by the Department for Transport.

1

Communication 28 10 2014

Page 127

9

Surrey County Council

Immediate Activities (Emergency and Urgent)
1) With Traffic Management on streets defined as Traffic Sensitive
·

·

9

2)

The Local committee Chair, local Member and the Local Area Office, via the Area Highway
Manager (AHM), must be informed by e-mail of these works as soon as is reasonably
practicable.
A twitter feed will be posted via Surrey Travel outlining the requirement for the works, the
undertaker and the likely duration.

With Traffic Management on streets defined as non Traffic Sensitive
·

·

The local Member, Local Area Office and Local Committee Chairman would only by
exception be advised of these works if the street is known to be locally significant and/or the
works were known to be going on for five days or more.
In general works of this type would not involve communication or engagement.

3) Without Traffic Management on street defined as non traffic sensitive.
·

This type would not involve communication or engagement.

2

Communication 28 10 2014

Page 128

Surrey County Council

Works of a nature that would require a Provisional Advanced Authorisation – (Reference
must be made to the Major & Major Plus Works Process documentations)

With Traffic Management on streets defined as Traffic Sensitive

1)
·

·
·
·
·

2)

Early discussions must be held with the relevant utility regarding works of this type to
understand implications on the highway and agree timings, duration and traffic
management requirements.
The local Member and the Local Area Office, via the AHM, must be engaged early within the
process for this type of works, the Local Committee Chairman must be advised of the works.
A Surrey County Council Information Sheet, issued to relevant stakeholders, would be
normal in areas of known traffic and or local sensitivity.
The Contact Centre must be advised via e-mail
A twitter feed may be considered

With Traffic Management on streets defined as non Traffic Sensitive
·
·
·

·

Early discussions must be held with the relevant utility regarding works of this type to
understand implications on the highway and agree timings and durations.
The local Member, the Local Committee Chairman and the Local Area Office via the AHM,
must be advised of the works and consideration given to Member and AHM engagement.
It would be by exception that a SCC Information Sheet would be released, consideration
given to significance of the road in the local highway network and the type of traffic
management.
The Contact Centre must be advised via e-mail.

Note 1) and 2) do not apply to single over night closures.

3) Without Traffic Management on street defined as non traffic sensitive.
·
·
·
·

Discussions would be considered with the relevant utility regarding works of this type to
understand implications on the highway and agree timings and durations.
Release of a SCC Information Sheet could be considered if the location was determined
locally sensitive but would not be the norm.
Consideration could be given to inform the local Member, Local Committee Chairman and
the Local Area Office of this type of works but would not be the norm.
It would not be necessary to advise the Contact Centre.

3

Communication 28 10 2014

Page 129

9

Surrey County Council

Standard Activity (four to ten days) – (Reference must be made to the Major & Major Plus
Works Process documentations)

With Traffic Management on streets defined as Traffic Sensitive.

4)
·

9
·

·
·
·

Communication should be had with the relevant utility regarding works of this type to
understand implications on the highway and agree timings, duration and traffic
management.
A Surrey County Council Information Sheet could be issued to relevant stakeholders, but
would not generally be the norm, local knowledge on area sensitivity being the significant
factor.
The local Member, Local Committee Chairman and the Local Area Office could be advised of
this type of works if works if they are in an area of known local sensitivity.
Contact Centre could be advised via e-mail if they are in an area of known local sensitivity.
A twitter feed may be considered

5) With Traffic Management on streets defined as non Traffic Sensitive
·

·
·
·

Communication should be had with the relevant utility regarding works of this type to
understand implications on the highway and agree timings, duration where the street is
known to be significant in the local network.
A Surrey County Council Information Sheet could be issued to relevant stakeholders, but
would not be the norm.
It would be customary to advise the local Member, Local Committee Chairman and the Local
Area Office of this type of works if works if they are in an area of known local sensitivity.
It would not be normal to advise the Contact Centre.

6) Without Traffic Management on streets defined as non traffic sensitive.
·
·
·
·

Discussions would generally be considered unnecessary with the relevant utility regarding
works of this type.
Member engagement is unlikely with this type of works.
An Information Sheet would not be published for these works.
In general works of this type would not involve communication or engagement.

4

Communication 28 10 2014

Page 130

Surrey County Council

Minor Activities (3 days or less)

7) With Traffic Management implications on streets defined as Traffic Sensitive.
·
·

The local Member, Local Area Office and Local Committee Chairman would only by
exception be advised of these works if the street is known to be locally significant.
In general works of this type would not involve communication or engagement.

8) With Traffic Management implications on street defined as non Traffic Sensitive
·
·

The local Member, Local Area Office and Local Committee Chairman would only by
exception be advised of these works if the street is known to be locally significant.
In general works of this type would not involve communication or engagement.

9) Without Traffic Management implications on non traffic sensitive

·

This type would not involve communication or engagement.

KJO 28 10 14

5

Communication 28 10 2014

Page 131

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 132

Page 133

Customer Engagement at Street Works and
Roadworks
A Code of practice

9

9

Contents
1.

Summary, Objectives and Benefits

2.

Classification of our customers
2.1.

Primary customers

2.2.

Secondary customers

2.3.

Tertiary customers

Page 134

3.

Levels of Engagement

4.

Communication channels
4.1.

Advanced Warning Signs

4.2.

Resident Notification

5.

Change control

6.

Exceptions and variations
6.1.

Mobile works

6.2.

Reactive and Emergency Works

7.

Review and revision of code of practice

Copyright 2013 © David Short & Lindsay Putland. Permission
granted to reproduce for personal and educational use only.
Commercial copying, hiring, lending is prohibited.

2|Page

1. Summary, objectives and benefits
What will this plan cover?

What are the benefits?

This code of practice sets out the way in which, and the tools we

Following the code of practice will:

should use to interact with customers affected by works.
Predominately, this involves the distribution of information and

·

improve public awareness

engagement with residents, businesses and road users. This

·

improve public perception

should not be confused with Public Consultation.

·

reduce the number of incoming queries

·

improve the quality of outgoing information

·

deliver top feedback results

·

help provide excellent customer service

For example:
-

We will tell you about upcoming road works to lay a

Page 135

new main
-

We will then ask you what you thought about the way
we conducted the work

-

We will not canvass opinion on whether you think the
works were needed.

What are our objectives?

·

To provide all Street Works and Highway practitioners with
the minimum standards of customer engagement

·

To notify customers concisely, consistently and clearly

3|Page

9

9

2. Classification of Customers
·

Statutory Authorities: police, fire, ambulance, coastguard

When planning roadworks, it is useful to understand the different

·

Public Transport

customer groups who should be notified. We have grouped these

·

Educational establishments: nearby schools and colleges

customers into the following categories to help target and

·

Elected Representatives: County Councillors,
Parish/Borough Councillors, District Councillors, MP, Town

understand the best method for delivering information.

Councillors
2.1.

Primary Customers- those whose day to day lives

·

Site Staff: sub-contractors, supervisors

are directly affected by the works:

·

Road users: those who use the affected road occasionally

·

Local amenities: waste sites, community centres hospitals

·

Other statutory undertakings: gas, water, electric etc

Page 136

·

Direct householders: directly within the site boundaries

·

Indirect householders: live near/on the affected road

·

Direct shops and businesses: directly within the site

2.3.

boundaries
·

·

·

Tertiary Customers- those who have a general
interest in our works:

Indirect shops and businesses: based near/on the affected
road

·

Road lobby groups: Freight Transport Association

Road users: those who use the affected road daily or

·

Local Media: Press, radio

regularly

·

Environmental groups: English Nature, South Downs

Major events: Local carnivals, marches sports etc that are
located within or near the site
2.2.

Conservations Board
·

Business and Trade Associations

Secondary Customers- those who need to know
about the works for practical or professional reasons:

4|Page

3. Levels of Engagement
In order to decide the level of engagement required we have graded the works by the potential disruption to customers. This is based on a
number of factors, outlined in the grid below. For example, if the area where the works are planned are best described within the red boxes the

Page 137

Level of engagement

works are level three.

Typical
location of
works

Duration

Type of road

Are there
businesses
affected?

Are there any
schools,
hospitals
nearby?

Is it a bus
route?

Rural Area

Less than one
week

U road

None

None

No

Mostly green=
LEVEL 1Minimum of one
week’s notice

Residential
area

1-2 weeks

C road

Handful of
businesses

Yes- but not
within site
boundaries

School bus
route

Mostly amber=
LEVEL 2Minimum of two
weeks’ notice

Busy Urban
Area

Over two
weeks

A or B road
(or traffic
sensitive)

Town Centre

Yes- within
site
boundaries

Yes

Mostly red=
LEVEL 3Minimum of 4
weeks’ notice

When deciding which level is appropriate, the communications team must determine the level of engagement based upon their knowledge of
the particular area. This is based on the information provided to them by the Works Project Manager.

5|Page

9

9

4. Communication channels

which to communicate our works with our stakeholders based on
the table.

In order to communicate well with customers we need to make sure
that the method of communication used is the right one.
Communicating effectively with customers not only provides a

Method of
Communication

better service but improves public awareness of what we do and
can reduce the number of incoming queries.

û

û

ü*

ü

ü

ü

û

ü*

ü

ü

ü

ü*

Courtesy Boards

ü

ü

ü

Site Information
Boards

û

ü*

ü

Press Release

û

ü*

ü

Radio Release

û

ü*

ü

Social media

ü*

ü*

ü

Public Meeting
Every week we communicate with our customers in a variety of

Information Pack
/Letter
Variable Message
Signs
Advanced Warning
Signs

Which method to use?

When informing customers of our works it is important that we use
the correct method of communication in order to ensure that our
message is heard; but which method should we use?

Once a level of engagement has been determined and stakeholders
identified, it is then important to best decide the best methods in

Secondary customers

re are a number of methods we use to communicate our works.

Tertiary
Customers

Page 138

sending an email or posting a tweet, the

Primary Customers

ways. Whether it is a customer seeing an advanced warning sign,

Level of Engagement
1
2
3

KEY: üRequired;

ü*Optional- based on knowledge of work,
area etc
ûNot required

4.1.

Advanced Warning Signs

·

Contact details

·

Access restrictions

Advanced warning signs are those erected before works
commence, as opposed to countdown markers that give motorists

It may also include:

warning of roadworks on the road ahead. Advanced Warning Signs
should provide:

·

Date of roadworks

·

Duration of roadworks

·

What is happening?

·

Contact details

·

Diversion details

·

How to give feedback

Page 139

·
·
Signs should comply with the TSRGD
4.2.

Resident Information

This may take many forms but should include:

·

Date of roadworks

·

Duration of roadworks

·

What is happening?

7|Page

9

9

5. Change control
Once works have been programmed and the pre-construction
processes are underway, every effort should be made to

What happens when we change?

maintain the start date. Change is both disruptive and
expensive. The closer the change is made to the anticipated

If dates change before works start but once communicated, it is

start date, the more expensive and disruptive this change

essential that these changes are communicated to our customers.

becomes.
Once works begin
Rationale

Page 140

It is understandable that sometimes works do change. Bad weather
Changing our work plans once

and plant breakdowns can result in us having to change our plans
once work has started. If this is the case, these changes must be

we have communicated them with customers gives the impression

communicated to identified customers using the channels already

that we don’t know what we are doing and don’t care about our

identified

customers.

8|Page

6. Exceptions and variations
6.1.

Mobile works

As a result, we should use channels that are appropriate and
practical. For example, we may issue a tweet to let followers know

Mobile works programmes such as grass cutting, gully emptying

where the grass cutting team will be each week.

and weed killing operate outside of the levels of engagement.
The cyclic maintenance schedules should be made available to
As these programmes follow schedules which often mean that

East Sussex Highways staff, especially the Highways Contact

teams can be in a number of locations in one day, it is difficult to

Centre, so that information can be given to customers who contact

accurately communicate these works in advance.

us about these works.

Page 141

6.2.

Reactive and Minor Works

On site courtesy signs will be on site whilst works are taking place.
These signs will let customers know who we are and how to get in

As reactive works are exactly that, reactive, it is hard to

touch.

communicate these works in advance.

Operational Teams may also be supplied with Comments Cards
and Contact Us postcards that they can give to customers to ask
how we are doing and to let customers know how to get in touch.

9

9

7. Review and revision of code of practice
This document was produced as part of the East Sussex Highways

·

The plan can be streamlined in any way.

Beyond Transformation Programme, its on-going programme for
improving customer service and best practice.

Then, this should be brought to the attention of:

East Sussex Highways is a partnership between East Sussex

Lindsay Putland

County Council and Kier Services.

Communications Officer- East Sussex Highways
01273 336102
lindsay.putland@eastsussex.gov.uk

As a working document this plan needs to be continually reviewed

Page 142

and revised. If in the view of the user or reading, should any part of
the plan become:

·

Unworkable, impractical or unnecessary, or

·

If improvements can be made, or

10 | P a g e

